\ &
N CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

>

Vs

Notice of a public meeting of

Audit & Governance Committee

To: Councillors Cunningham-Cross (Chair), Barnes, Brooks
(Vice-Chair), Burton, Cuthbertson, Steward and Watson
Date: Wednesday, 13 February 2013
Time: 5.00 pm
Venue: The Guildhall, York
AGENDA

1. Declarations of Interest

At this point, Members are asked to declare:

e Any personal interests not included on the Register of
Interests

e Any prejudicial interests or
e Any disclosable pecuniary interests
which they may have in respect of business on this agenda.

2. Minutes (Pages 3-10)

To approve and sign the minutes of the meeting of the Audit &
Governance Committee held on 12 December 2012.

3. Public Participation

At this point in the meeting members of the public who have
registered their wish to speak regarding an item on the agenda or
an issue within the committee’s remit can do so. The deadline for
registering is 5:00 pm on Tuesday 12 February 2013.

www.york.gov.uk



10.

Exclusion of Press and Public

To consider the exclusion of the press and public from the meeting
during consideration of Annex 1 to agenda item 10 on the grounds
that it contains information relating to prevention, prosecution or
investigation of crime. This information is classed as exempt under
paragraph 7 of Schedule 12A to Section 100A of the Local
Government Act 1972 (as revised by the Local Government
(Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006).

Audit and Governance Committee Forward Plan to December
2013 (Pages 11 - 16)

This paper presents the future plan of reports expected to be
presented to the committee during the forthcoming year to
December 2013.

Review of the Effectiveness of Internal Audit (Pages 17 - 20)

This report seeks Members’ approval for the arrangements for the
review of the effectiveness of internal audit.

Scrutiny of the Treasury Management Monitor 3 Report
2012/13 and review of Prudential Indicators (Pages 21 - 46)

This report provides Members with an update of treasury
management activity for the first nine months of 2012/13.

Scrutiny of the Treasury Management Strategy Statement and
Prudential Indicators (Pages 47 - 82)

This report details the Treasury Management Strategy Statement
and Prudential Indicators 2013/14 to 2017/18.

Progress Report on 2012/13 Audit Report (Pages 83 - 90)
This report provides an update from Mazars on their progress in
delivering their responsibilities as the council’s auditors.

Fraud Risk Assessment (Pages 91 - 106)

This report informs Members about potential fraud risks that the
council is exposed to, and proposed counter fraud activity to
address these risks.



11. Internal Audit Plan Consultation (Pages 107 - 110)

The purpose of this report is to seek Members’ views on the
priorities for internal audit for 2013/14, to inform the preparation of
the annual audit plan.

12. Urgent Business

Any other business which the Chair considers urgent under the
Local Government Act 1972.

Democracy Officer:

Name: Jayne Carr

Contact Details:

Telephone — (01904) 552030
Email — jayne.carr@york.gov.uk

For more information about any of the following please contact the
Democracy Officer responsible for servicing this meeting:

Registering to speak
Business of the meeting
Any special arrangements
Copies of reports

Contact details are set out above.




This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 Agenda Annex

About City of York Council Meetings

Would you like to speak at this meeting?
If you would, you will need to:

e register by contacting the Democracy Officer (whose name and
contact details can be found on the agenda for the meeting) no
later than 5.00 pm on the last working day before the meeting;

e ensure that what you want to say speak relates to an item of
business on the agenda or an issue which the committee has
power to consider (speak to the Democracy Officer for advice
on this);

e find out about the rules for public speaking from the Democracy
Officer.

A leaflet on public participation is available on the Council’s
website or from Democratic Services by telephoning York
(01904) 551088

Further information about what’s being discussed at this
meeting

All the reports which Members will be considering are available for
viewing online on the Council’'s website. Alternatively, copies of
individual reports or the full agenda are available from Democratic
Services. Contact the Democracy Officer whose name and contact
details are given on the agenda for the meeting. Please note a
small charge may be made for full copies of the agenda
requested to cover administration costs.

Access Arrangements

We will make every effort to make the meeting accessible to you.
The meeting will usually be held in a wheelchair accessible venue
with an induction hearing loop. We can provide the agenda or
reports in large print, electronically (computer disk or by email), in
Braille or on audio tape. Some formats will take longer than others
so please give as much notice as possible (at least 48 hours for
Braille or audio tape).

If you have any further access requirements such as parking close-
by or a sign language interpreter then please let us know. Contact
the Democracy Officer whose name and contact details are given
on the order of business for the meeting.

Every effort will also be made to make information available in
another language, either by providing translated information or an



Page 2

interpreter providing sufficient advance notice is given. Telephone
York (01904) 551550 for this service.

T AR TSt (AT ST 2 SR O (FI O[T T ST G 7 4AUd (OB T TE, I S W
T O] I I ORI T U TS (RIS} AR 4 7T | G  (01904) 551 550 |

Yeteri kadar dnceden haber verilmesi kosuluyla, bilgilerin terGimesini hazirlatmalk ya da
bir terctiman bulmak i¢cin mimkin olan hersey yapilacaktir. Tel: (01904) 551 550

S HEREHNEAREE TR IAE - EE R RERRTEA B - ik
IR, B|3S (01904) 551 550,

(01904) 551 550@5Jf-ﬁufgﬁf@g‘f‘L{u,z;mwrr;q.(jgd:clw!f_d,%wﬁ

Informacja mozie by¢ dostepna w tumaczeniu, jesli dostaniemy zapotrzebowanie z
wystarczajacym wyprzedzeniem. Tel: (01904) 551 550

Holding the Cabinet to Account

The majority of councillors are not appointed to the Cabinet (39 out
of 47). Any 3 non-Cabinet councillors can ‘call-in’ an item of
business following a Cabinet meeting or publication of a Cabinet
Member decision. A specially convened Corporate and Scrutiny
Management Committee (CSMC) will then make its
recommendations to the next scheduled Cabinet meeting, where a
final decision on the ‘called-in’ business will be made.

Scrutiny Committees
The purpose of all scrutiny and ad-hoc scrutiny committees
appointed by the Council is to:
e Monitor the performance and effectiveness of services;
e Review existing policies and assist in the development of new
ones, as necessary; and
e Monitor best value continuous service improvement plans

Who Gets Agenda and Reports for our Meetings?

e Councillors get copies of all agenda and reports for the
committees to which they are appointed by the Council;

e Relevant Council Officers get copies of relevant agenda and
reports for the committees which they report to;

e York Explore Library and the Press receive copies of all public
agenda/reports;

e All public agenda/reports can also be accessed online at other
public libraries using this link
http://democracy.york.gov.uk/ieDocHome.aspx?bcr=1




Page 3 Agenda ltem 2

City of York Council Committee Minutes
MEETING AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
DATE 12 DECEMBER 2012

PRESENT COUNCILLORS CUNNINGHAM-CROSS (CHAIR),

BARNES, BROOKS (VICE-CHAIR), BURTON,
CUTHBERTSON, STEWARD AND WATSON

25.

26.

27.

28.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Members were asked to declare any personal interests not
included on the Register of Interests, any prejudicial interests or
any disclosable pecuniary interests which they may have in
respect of business on this agenda. None were declared.

MINUTES

RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting of 27
September 2012 be approved and signed by
the Chair as a correct record.

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

It was reported that there were no registrations to speak at the
meeting under the council’s Public Participation Scheme.

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE FORWARD PLAN TO
SEPTEMBER 2013

Consideration was given to a paper which presented the future
plan of reports expected to be presented to the Committee
during the forthcoming year to September 2013.

It was agreed that there was a need to schedule an additional
meeting of the Committee in order to make timely progress in
implementing the recommendations of the Audit and
Governance Effectiveness Task Group (minute 33 refers).

RESOLVED: (i)  That the Committee’s Forward Plan be
updated to reflect the recommendations
of the Audit and Governance
Effectiveness Task Group'.



29.

Page 4

(i)  That an additional meeting of the
Committee be scheduled to take place in
the Spring of 2013.

(iii)  That future meetings of the Committee
commence at 5.00pm.

REASON: To ensure that the Committee has a Forward
Plan in place to enable it to carry out the
functions of an effective audit committee.

Action Required
1. Update committee's Forward Plan EA

KEY CORPORATE RISK MONITOR QUARTER 3

Members considered a report that presented an update on the
key corporate risks and which highlighted in more detail any
emerging risk issues, with a view to Members considering any
further information they would wish to receive on these matters.

Officers gave details of the council’s critical key corporate risks
and stated that the council was intending to review its risks and
risk management processes during the 2012/13 financial year.
This work would be supported by Zurich Municipal’s Risk
Management Services. Members would be invited to participate
in an event focussing on identifying and reviewing key corporate
risks. Members reiterated their comments made at previous
meetings that Adult and Social Care should be designated as a
key corporate risk in view of the changing demographics and
the resulting financial implications.

The risks in respect of Communities and Neighbourhoods and
City and Environmental Services were attached to the report as
Annexes A and B respectively. Officers from these directorates
responded to Members’ queries in respect of the risks and, in
particular, the issues in respect of:

e The impact of reduced funding on front-line services
delivered by Communities and Neighbourhoods and on
income generation

e The transition of public health responsibilities from the
Primary Care Trust to the Local Authority

e Air quality targets

e Reduced funding for adaptations



30.

Page 5

e The risks posed when horses on verges became
untethered

e The Community Stadium

e Income generation in respect of City and Environmental
Services, including consideration of generating further
income from the provision of pre-application advice

e Emergency Planning, flooding and business continuity
planning

e The York North West Development and developments in
other parts of the city

e Appeals following planning decisions

e 106 agreements

o Waste PFI

A request was made that the detailed Key Corporate Risk
Monitor be included in the published agenda papers for future
meetings rather than being emailed separately as was currently
the case. Officers confirmed that this could be actioned but
explained that, although the document was a useful tool in
enabling Members to identify risks for which they would wish to
receive more detailed information, the present arrangements
ensured that the focus was on specific risks and hence officers
with specialist knowledge of those issues were in attendance at
the meeting to respond to Members’ questions.

RESOLVED: (i)  That the report be noted.

(i)  That Adult and Social Care be
designated as a key corporate risk.

REASON: To provide assurance that the authority is
effectively understanding and managing its
key risks.

EXTERNAL AUDIT FEE LETTER 2012/13- MAZARS

Members considered a report that presented the External Audit
2012/13 fee planning letter prepared by Mazars.

Members noted that the final fee for 2011/12 was £265,067 for
the audit and certification work. The proposed fees for 2012/13
totalled £155,356. The reduction in fee was due to the change
in audit arrangements and the fact that previously the fees had



31.

32.

Page 6

covered not only the cost of local audit work but also contributed
to the cost of the Audit Commission’s national functions.

Referring to paragraph 6 of the report, Members queried
whether it was likely that the fee would be higher. Officers
stated that, although there was a risk that the fee would be
higher if the quality of the working papers provided was not to a
suitable standard, they were confident that it would not be
necessary to increase the fee.

RESOLVED: That the contents of the report and the Fees
Letter be noted.

REASON: To ensure that Members are aware of the
proposed external audit fee and
arrangements.

CERTIFICATION OF CLAIMS AND RETURNS 2011/2012 - AUDIT
COMMISSION

Members considered a report that presented the Certificate of
Claims and Returns Report 2011/12 produced by the Audit
Commission. The report reviewed the council’s arrangements
for the preparation and administration of grant claims within the
council. Members were pleased to note that the council’s
arrangements had continued to improve over the last few years.

RESOLVED: That the Audit Commission’s Certification of
Claims and Returns report be noted.

REASON: To enable Members to consider the
effectiveness of the council’s grant
administration activity and comment on the
current arrangements.

INTERNAL AUDIT AND FRAUD PLAN PROGRESS REPORT

Members considered a report that provided an update on
progress made in delivering the internal audit work plan for
2012/13 and on current counter fraud and information
governance activity.

Members questioned officers about the controls that were in
place in respect of the use of procurement cards. Officers



33.

Page 7

explained that it was intended that the cards would be rolled out
more widely across the council but, before that occurred, action

was being taken to ensure that effective controls were in place.

This included ensuring that VAT receipts were produced, putting
in place clear guidance on the use of the cards and appropriate

sanctions when the cards were not used appropriately.

In response to questions from Members, details were given of
the arrangements that were in place across the council to
prevent, detect and report potential money laundering.
Members stressed the importance of ensuring that the
arrangements that were being made to raise staff awareness
and deliver training included all aspects of money laundering
and not just placement. It was noted that it was intended to
update the current policy as well as identifying particular
aspects of the council’s work which were most vulnerable to
money laundering activity.

RESOLVED: That the progress made in delivering the
2012/13 internal audit work programme, and
current counter fraud and information
governance activity be noted.

REASON: To enable Members to consider the
implications of audit and fraud findings.

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE EFFECTIVENESS - SELF
ASSESSMENT

Members considered a report that presented the outcomes of
the review of the committee’s own effectiveness.

Referring to the task group’s suggestion that induction training
and an annual training update should be made compulsory for
all members of the committee, discussion took place as to ways
of improving Member engagement with training in general.
Suggestions put forward included greater consultation with
Members regarding the dates of training sessions, designating
two days each year as Member training days and offering more
on-line training.

Members suggested the following amendments to the
recommendations detailed at Annnex 1 of the report:
¢ Include an additional column to include the person
responsible for delivering the proposed action.



34.

Page 8

e The appointment of an independent member to the
committee to be designated as a priority, as this was a
longstanding aim.

e The committee’s terms of reference to be reviewed on an
annual basis rather than every three years.

e Consideration to be given as to how to raise the public’s
awareness of the work of the committee.

Max Thomas was thanked for his work in supporting the
committee through the self-evaluation process.

RESOLVED: That, subject to the inclusion of the additions
listed above, the recommendations of the
Effectiveness Task Group be approved.

REASON: To ensure that the Audit and Governance
Committee remains effective.

SCRUTINY OF THE TREASURY MANAGEMENT MONITOR 2 REPORT
2012/13 AND REVIEW OF PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS

Members considered a report that provided an update of
treasury management activity for the first six months of 2012/13.

Officers went through the key issues. It was noted that the
environment in which treasury management operated remained
volatile due to the continued economic uncertainty. The
council’s treasury management advisers had forecast that the
first rise in Bank Rate would be in Quarter 4 2014 or Quarter 1
2015. Members’ attention was also drawn to the fact that no
loans had been taken in 2012/13. This was due to loan rates
remaining higher than investment rates and also the interest
rate forecast predicting that borrowing rates would continue to
stay low. Details were given of the “Certainty Rates” introduced
by the Government.

RESOLVED: (i)  That the Treasury Management Monitor
2 and Prudential Indicators 2012/13 be
noted.

(i)  That a training session on Treasury
Management be arranged’.

REASON: To ensure that those responsible for scrutiny
and governance arrangements are updated on



35.

Page 9

a regular basis and to ensure that those
implementing policies and executing
transactions have properly fulfilled their
responsibilities with regard to delegation and
reporting.

Action Required
1. Arrange training session LBW

ANNUAL FINANCIAL UPDATE FOR 2012/13

Members considered a report that provided an update on the
approach being taken for the Annual Financial Report
(Statement of Accounts) for 2012/13 and which also responded
to the comments made in the Annual Governance Report
(AGR).

Members’ attention was drawn to the references in the 2011/12
AGR in respect of the council’s Fixed Asset Register, specific
accounting treatment in relation to cash and bank and the date
of reconciliation for schools’ balances. The proposed actions
which were to be taken in response to the comments were
detailed in the report. It was noted that the committee’s
recommendation that school’s balances should perhaps be
reconciled on 31 March had been considered but, because of
the timing of school holidays, this would have placed
considerable pressure on the close down timetable and hence
the preferred option was for schools to be reconciled a week
early.

Officers gave details of changes to measure transport
infrastructure assets.

RESOLVED: (i)  That it be noted that only minor changes
are required in the 2012/13 Annual
Financial Report compared to last year.

(i)  That the accounting treatment for the
Fixed Asset Register and Cash and
Bank and the approach taken to the
reconciliation of school bank accounts
be noted.



Page 10

REASON: To ensure that those responsible for
governance arrangements are updated and
made aware as to the approach taken to the
Annual Financial Report 2012/13, for their
approval by 30 June 2013.

Councillor Cunningham-Cross, Chair
[The meeting started at 4.30 pm and finished at 7.00 pm].



Page 11 Agenda Item 5

COUNCIL

Audit and Governance Committee 13 February 2012

Report of the Director of CBSS

Audit & Governance Committee Forward Plan to December 2013
Summary

1. This paper presents the future plan of reports expected to be
presented to the Committee during the forthcoming year to December
2013.

Background

2. There are to be six fixed meetings of the Committee in a municipal
year. To assist members in their work, attached as an Annex is the
indicative rolling Forward Plan for meetings to September. This may
be subject to change depending on key internal control and
governance developments at the time. A rolling Forward Plan of the
Committee will be reported at every meeting reflecting any known
changes.

3. There have been three amendments made to the forward plan since
the previous version was presented to this Committee in December
2012.

4. An additional meeting has been scheduled for March 2013 in order to
implement the recommendations of the Audit & Governance
Committee Effectiveness Task Group.

5. Two additional items have also been added to this additional meeting.
The Key Corporate Risk Monitor Quarter 4 (including ACE Risks) has
been deferred from the February meeting. Additionally, a new report
on restricting email access by members of the public has been added.

6. An additional item has been added to the April meeting entitled
Information Governance Annual Report.



Page 12

Consultation

7.

10.

11.

12.

The Forward Plan is subject to discussion by Members at each
meeting, has been discussed with the Chair of the Committee and key
corporate officers.

Options

Not relevant for the purpose of the report.
Analysis

Not relevant for the purpose of the report.
Council Plan

This report contributes to the overall effectiveness of the council’s
governance and assurance arrangements contributing to an ‘Effective
Organisation’.

Implications

(a) Financial - There are no implications

(b) Human Resources (HR) - There are no implications

(c) Equalities - There are no implications

(d) Legal - There are no implications

(e) Crime and Disorder - There are no implications

(f) Information Technology (IT) - There are no implications

(g) Property - There are no implications

Risk Management

By not complying with the requirements of this report, the council will
fail to have in place adequate scrutiny of its internal control
environment and governance arrangements, and it will also fail to
properly comply with legislative and best practice requirements.



Page 13

Recommendations

13.
(@) The Committee’s Forward Plan for the period up to December
2013 be noted.

Reason
To ensure the Committee receives reqular reports in accordance
with the functions of an effective audit committee.

(b) Members identify any further items they wish to add to the
Forward Plan.

Reason

To ensure the Committee can seek assurances on any aspect of
the council’s internal control environment in accordance with its
roles and responsibilities.

Contact Details

Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the
report:

Emma Audrain lan Floyd

Trainee Cipfa Accountant  Director of CBSS

Customer & Business Telephone: 01904 551100

Support Services

Telephone: 01904 551170 Report J Date 13/02/2013
Approved

Specialist Implications Officers
Head of Civic, Democratic & Legal Services

Wards Affected: Not applicable All

For further information please contact the author of the report

Background Papers:
None

Annex
Audit & Governance Committee Forward Plan to December 2013



Page 14

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 15

Annex 1

Audit & Governance Committee Draft Forward Plan to December 2013

Training/briefing events will be held at appropriate points in the year to
support members in their role on the Committee.

Committee 19 March 2013 (One-off meeting)

Implement recommendations of Audit & Governance Committee
Effectiveness Task Group

Key Corporate Risk Monitor Quarter 4 (Including ACE Risks)
Restricting email access by members of the public

Committee 17 April 2013

Approval of Internal Audit Plan & Review of Terms of reference
Annual Report of the Audit & Governance Committee

Internal Audit & Fraud Plan Progress Report

Follow up of Audit Recommendations

Information Governance Annual Report

Audit Commission national reports summary (if any)

Audit Commission reports as per agreed Audit & Inspection plan

Changes to the Constitution (if any)

Committee June 2013 (Date TBC)

Review of effectiveness of Internal Audit

Annual Report of the Head of Internal Audit

Draft Annual Governance Statement

Audit Commission national reports summary (if any)

Audit Commission reports as per agreed Audit & Inspection plan
Changes to the Constitution (if any)



Page 16

Committee July 2013 (Date TBC)

Draft Statement of Accounts 2012/13

Scrutiny of the Treasury Management Annual Repot 2012/13 and
review of prudential indicators

Key Corporate Risk Monitor Quarter 1 (Including directorate risks)

Report to update on the Progress of Direct Payments

Audit Commission reports as per agreed Audit & Inspection plan
Changes to the Constitution (if any)

Committee September 2013 (Date TBC)

Final Statement of Accounts 2012/13

Annual Governance Report 2012/13

Corporate Risk Monitor Quarter 2 (Including directorate risks)
Follow up of Internal & External Audit Recommendations

Internal Audit & Fraud Plan Progress Report

Audit Commission national reports summary (if any)
Audit Commission reports as per agreed Audit & Inspection plan
Changes to the Constitution (if any)

Committee December 2013 (Date TBC)
Key Corporate Risk Monitor Quarter 3 (Including directorate risks)

Annual Audit Letter — Mazaars
2013/14 Review of the effectiveness of Internal Audit
Internal Audit & Fraud Plan Progress Report

Scrutiny of the Treasury Management Monitor 2 Report 2012/13
and Review of Prudential Indicators

Audit Commission reports as per agreed Audit & Inspection plan
Changes to the Constitution (if any)



Page 17 Agenda ltem 6

Audit and Governance Committee 13 February 2013

Report of the Head of Internal Audit

Review of the Effectiveness of Internal Audit

Summary

1  To agree the arrangements for the 2012/13 review of the
effectiveness of internal audit.

Background

2 The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2011 require local
authorities to conduct an annual review of the effectiveness of
their internal audit, and to report the findings of this review to
an appropriate committee. The process is intended to form
part of the wider review of the effectiveness of the system of
internal control which is necessary to prepare the Annual
Governance Statement (AGS).

3 Best practice guidance issued by the Chartered Institute of
Public Finance (CIPFA) also recommends that audit
committees should periodically review their own effectiveness
so as to ensure that they continue to properly fulfil their
responsibilities.

4 In previous years, the annual review of the effectiveness of
internal audit has been undertaken jointly with North Yorkshire
County Council through the Shared Service Contract Board
(SSCB), and in consultation with the respective audit
committee chairs. The SSCB comprises the respective client
officers from both councils and Veritau’s Head of Internal
Audit. Meetings of the SSCB are held approximately four
times a year and involve consideration of performance
indicators, changes in working practices and other service
developments. The results of the 2011/12 review of internal
audit effectiveness were reported to this committee on 28
June 2012.



Page 18

In addition, the committee has recently undertaken a review of
its own effectiveness. The results of this review were reported
to the last meeting of the committee on 12 December 2012.
An action plan was agreed to address a number of areas
where it was thought that the committee’s effectiveness could
be improved or other changes made to support the functioning
of the committee.

Proposed arrangements for 2012/13

The Regulations require either the council itself or a
committee of the council to review the effectiveness of internal
audit, and for the review to be performed annually. The
council has delegated this responsibility to the Audit and
Governance Committee and included it within the terms of
reference for the committee. To ensure consistency and avoid
unnecessary duplication, it is proposed that the SSCB should
again undertake the detailed work, with the process overseen
by the chair of the committee. As last year, it is proposed that
the outcome of the review will then be reported to the June
2013 meeting of this committee.

The best practice guidance states that the review of the
effectiveness of internal audit should also include
consideration of the effectiveness of the audit committee itself
(to the extent that its work relates to internal audit) as well as
the performance of the audit provider. As noted in paragraph
5 above, the committee has recently completed such a review
and the conclusions will therefore be taken into account as
part of the review of internal audit effectiveness.

Options

The annual review of the effectiveness of internal audit is a
statutory requirement. The committee therefore has two
options:

eto adopt the process followed in previous years with a joint
review being undertaken by the SSCB (in consultation
with the audit committee chairs of both councils). This
option is recommended.

eto recommend an alternative approach.



10

11

12

Page 19

Council Plan

The Audit and Governance Committee forms an important
component of the council’s corporate governance framework.
As such it supports the overall aims and priorities of the
council by promoting probity, integrity and honesty and by
helping to make the council a more effective organisation.

Implications

The implications are:

o Finance - none

o Human Resources (HR) - none
o Equalities - none

o Legal — the council has a statutory responsibility to
undertake an annual review of internal audit
effectiveness

J Crime and Disorder - none

o Information Technology (IT) - none
o Property - none

Risk Management Assessment

The council may not discharge its statutory responsibilities if it
fails to establish appropriate arrangements for the annual
review of internal audit effectiveness.

Recommendations
Members are asked to;

- consider and agree the proposed arrangements for
undertaking the review of internal audit effectiveness.

Reason

To enable Members to consider the adequacy and
effectiveness of the council’s internal audit
arrangements.



Page 20

Contact Details

Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the
report:

Max Thomas lan Floyd

Head of Internal Audit Director of Customer & Business

Veritau Limited Support Services

Telephone: 01904 Telephone: 01904 551100

552940
Report v Date 21 January
Approved 2013

Specialist Implications Officers

Not applicable

Wards Affected: Not applicable All v

For further information please contact the author of the report
Background Papers

None

Annexes

None



Page 21 Agenda ltem 7

YORK

ctj% CITY OF
S CouNCIL

Audit & Governance 13 February 2013

Report of the Director of Customer & Business Support Services

Scrutiny of Treasury Management Monitor 3 Review and Prudential Indicators
2012/13

Summary

1. The Audit & Governance Committee are responsible for ensuring effective
scrutiny of the treasury management strategy and policies, as stated in the
Treasury Management Strategy 2012/13 approved by full Council on 23
February 2012. The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy
(CIPFA) Treasury Management in the Public Services: Code of Practice and
Cross-Sectoral Guidance (“the Code”) stipulates that

e There needs to be, at a minimum, a mid year review of treasury
management strategy and performance. This is intended to highlight
any areas of concern that have arisen since the original strategy was
approved,

e Those charged with governance are also personally responsible for
ensuring they have the necessary skills and training

2.  Attached at Appendix A is the Treasury Management Monitor 3 Review and
Prudential Indicators 2012/13 report. This information provides Members with

an update of treasury management activity for the first nine months of
2012/13.

Background
3. Points of interest to note in the Treasury Management Monitor 3 Review and

Prudential Indicators are:
(a) Paragraph 5 — Bank Base rate is not scheduled to increase before Q1
201510 0.75%
(b) Paragraph 6 — Equity price as and gilt yields will remain volatile during
2013, which will give opportunities for favourable borrowing rates to be
achieved
(c) Paragraph 7 - Sector — treasury management advisers — believe that
the longer run trend is for gilt yields and PWLB rates to rise



Page 22

(d) Paragraph 9 - The Council will aim to achieve the optimum return
(yield) on investments commensurate with the proper levels of security and
liquidity

(e) Paragraph 13 - The average level of funds available for investment
purposes in the nine months of 2012/13 was £42.936m (£58.085m in
11/12)

(f) Paragraph 14 - The average level of funds has fallen compared to a
year ago due to using the Council’s surplus funds to support capital
expenditure rather than taking external borrowing

(g) Paragraph 16 — Investment activity earned 1.5% in first 9 months of
2012/13 compared to 7 day LIBID of 0.41%

(h) Paragraph 20 - Interest rates available for investment have markedly
fallen in the last quarter of 2012. Banks have access to cheaper funding
which in turn has driven down market rates significantly in the last quarter.
(i) Paragraph 27 - To minimise investment risk, no new borrowing has
been taken during 2012/13 and it is anticipated that no further borrowing
will be undertaken during this financial year

(j) Paragraph 31 - The HRA amounts to 54% of the borrowing portfolio at
£140.3m and the GF is 46% with borrowing at £118.3m, a total of £258.6m
(k) Paragraph 36 - During the financial year 2012/13 to date the Council
has operated within the treasury limits and Prudential Indicators.

Training can be provided as previously requested by Members:

(a) to increase Members knowledge of the Local Government Pension
Scheme (LGPS) to be able to understand how the LGPS works and how it
relates to the Councils Annual Financial Report — Statement of Accounts
(b) to raise awareness of all aspects of Treasury management and also
specifically focus on individual topics such as the Capital Financing
Requirement and the need to borrow or Investments policy including
creditworthiness of counterparties

Training can be arranged prior to A&G Meetings on 17 April 2013 or 27 June
2013 or a date as Members recommend.

Consultation
Not applicable

Options

It is a statutory requirement under Local Government Act 2003 for the council
to operate in accordance with the CIPFA prudential Code and the CIPFA
Treasury Management in the Public Services Code of Practice “the Code”.
The revised “code” was originally approved at full Council on 26 February



10.

Page 23

2010. At this time the Council also approved the Treasury Management
Strategy Statement and Prudential Indicators for 2010/11 to 2014/15 which
stated that “The Treasury Management Reporting arrangements set out in
paragraph 16, table 1, as described by “the Code” and the terms of reference
in the Constitution be amended to include that Audit & Governance
Committee scrutinise the Treasury Management Strategy and Monitoring
reports.” No alternative options are available.

Council Plan

Treasury management is an integral part of the council’s finances providing for
cash flow management and financing of capital schemes. It aims to ensure
that the council maximises its return on investments, (whilst the priority is for
security of capital and liquidity of funds) and minimises the cost of its debts.
This allows more resources to be freed up to invest in the Council’s priority
areas as set out in the council plan. It therefore underpins all of the council’s
aims.

Implications

The implications are

. Financial — the security of the Councils capital funds is a priority,
maximising returns on investments is key along with minimising the finance
costs of debt.

« Human Resources - there are no human resource implications to this
report.

« Equalities - there are no equality implications to this report.

. Legal - there are no legal implications to this report.

. Crime and Disorder - there are no crime and disorder implications to this
report.

. Information Technology - there are no information technology implications
to this report.

« Property —there are no property implications to this report.

« Other — there are no other implications to this report.

Risk Management

The treasury management function is a high-risk area because of the volume
and level of large money transactions. As a result of this the Local
Government Act 2003 (as amended), the CIPFA Prudential Code and the
CIPFA Treasury Management in the Public Services Code of Practice (the
code) are all adhered to as required.



11.

Page 24

Recommendations

(a) Audit & Governance Committee note and scrutinise the Treasury

Management Monitor 3 and Prudential Indicators 2012/13 at Appendix A

(b) Audit & Governance Committee confirm the date for the suggested

training session as detailed in paragraph 4.

Reason: That those responsible for scrutiny and governance arrangements
are updated on a regular basis to ensure that those implementing policies and
executing transactions have properly fulfilled their responsibilities with regard
to delegation and reporting.

Contact Details

Author: Chief Officer responsible for the
report:

Louise Branford-White lan Floyd

Technical Finance Manager Director of Customer & Business

01904 551187 Support Services
Report v Date 13/02/13
approved

Specialist Implications Officer(s) None

Wards Affected: List wards or tick box to indicate all  All v

For further information please contact the author of this report
Background Working Papers

Local Government Act 2003 and amendments

CIPFA Prudential Code

CIPFA Treasury Management in the Public Services: Code of
Practice and Cross-Sectoral Guidance (“the Code”)

Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Prudential
Indicators for 2012/13 to 2016/17

Annexes

1.

Appendix A - Treasury Management Monitor 3 Review and Prudential
Indicators 2012/13

2. Annex A — prudential Indicators 2012/13



Page 25

YORK APPENDIX A

Cabinet - Report of the Cabinet Member for Corporate Services

Treasury Management Monitor 3 and Prudential Indicators
2012/13

Summary

1.

This Council is required through regulations issued under the
Local Government Act 2003 and the revised 2011 (Chartered
Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy) Code of Practice for
Treasury Management (as revised) to provide members with an
update on treasury management activities at least twice a year.

2. This report therefore ensures this council is implementing best
practice in accordance with the Code. It updates on the Treasury
Management activities for the period 1 April 2012 to 31
December 2013 and reviews:

e Economic Background
e Annual Investment Strategy
¢ |nvestment portfolio
e Borrowing portfolio
e Compliance with Prudential Indicators
Background
3. The Council’s Treasury Management function is responsible for

the effective management of the Council’s investments, cash
flows, its banking, money market and capital transactions; the
effective control of the risks associated with those activities; and
the pursuit of optimum performance consistent with those risks.

Economic Background and Analysis

4.

The Council’s treasury management activities have operated

within the following economic background:

a) Gross Domestic product (GDP) which measures the growth of
the economy fell by 0.3% in quarter 4 of 2012. The
downgrade is mainly prompted by weakness in the Country’s



Page 26

dominant service sector and the unwinding of the boost from
the Olympic Games in the summer. This contraction is a
concern as we move in 2013 as 2 consecutive quarters of
negative growth results in a technical recession;

b) Retail sales weakened but spending off the high street held
up;

c) Employment continued to rise, albeit at a slower pace. Annual
growth of overall average earnings dropped from 1.8% in June

to 1.3% in October. Given the rate of inflation over this period,
real pay continued to fall on an annual basis;

d) Inflation remained stubbornly above the MPC’s 2% target;
October’s jump in university tuition fees, hefty rises in utility
prices at the end of the 2012 and a pick-up in food price
inflation following poor harvests, mean that inflation is likely to
hover between 2.5% and 3% for the best part of 2013. The
announcement in November that Mark Carney, the current
Governor of the Bank of Canada, and who will take on the
Governorship of the Bank of England from June 2013, raised
speculation that the MPC’s current 2% inflation target may be
reformulated;

e) The MPC paused its programme of asset purchases, with
quantitative easing remaining at £375bn;

f) Equity prices in the UK and overseas largely continued to rise
over the course of the fourth quarter, with the FTSE 100
picking up from 5,820 to 5,898. Over the period qilt prices fell,
causing 10-year qilt yields to rise from about 1.55% to 1.80%

g) The US economy continued to recover at a modest pace and
In the Eurozone, market sentiment continued to be steadied
by the ECB’s pledge to buy “unlimited” quantities of peripheral
government’s sovereign debt

From the economic overview described above the environment
in which treasury management operates remains volatile. Sector
— the Council’s treasury management advisers — undertook a
review of its interest rate forecasts following the issue of the
latest Bank of England Inflation Report for November 2012. In
the August Inflation Report, the Bank changed its position
significantly in as much as it markedly downgraded its forecasts
for the strength and speed of recovery in GDP growth whereas
previously it had consistently been forecasting a strong recovery
to over 3% p.a. Inits November Report, the Bank has continued
this shift towards pessimism in the speed and strength of



Page 27

recovery; it is now only forecasting growth at around 1% in 2013
and 2% in 2014. These developments have pushed back
Sector’s expectations of the timing of the eventual start of
increases in Bank Rate from Q4 2014 to Q1 2015, as well as the
pace of rises in gilt yields. Table 1 is Sector’s Interest Rate
forecast:

Mar-13 Jun-13 Sep-13 Dec-13 Mar-14 Jun-14 Sep-14 Dec-14 Mar-15

Bank rate
Syr PWLB rate
10yr PWLB rate Xk

25yr PWLB rate ei:ii

§0yr PWLB rate gEXIIED

Table 1: Sector’s — Treasury Management Advisers —
Interest Rate Forecast

. Economic forecasting remains difficult with so many external
influences weighing on the UK. Equity prices staged a significant
rise during the second half of 2012 and the start of January,
accompanied by a fall in bond prices and a rise in bond yields.
2013 is likely to see a tug of war between bond and equity prices
as ebbs and flows in investor confidence and fears cause
recurring spikes and falls in their prices.

. The overall balance of risks to economic recovery in the UK
remains weighted to the downside. Sector believes that the
longer run trend is for gilt yields and PWLB rates to rise due to
the high volume of gilt issuance in the UK, and the high volume
of debt issuance in other major western countries. Although the
prospect of further QE is likely to keep gilt yields lower than they
would otherwise be in the near term, this programme is not
everlasting. At some stage, the expectation of a conclusion to QE
will add to the upside pressure on gilt yields

. Figure 1 below shows the actual and projection of the bank base
rate, which has remained at historically low levels since April
2009. Sector latest bank base rate forecast is November 2012
and this is compared to the January 2012and January 2011
forecast. Other economists latest forecast are also shown for
November 2012. The graph highlights the delay in the
expectation of the increase in the Bank Base rate which is as a



Page 28

result of the decision to expand quantitative easing and
deterioration of growth prospects.

Base Rate Actual & Projections Dec 2011 - May 2016
%

b (Mfficial Rank Rake

3.50
3.00 ==fll== Sector Forecast-Mov
2012
250
2.00 UBS Forecast-Nov
2012
1.50
i (3pital Lcoriomics
1.00 — Forecast-Nov 2012
0.50 G-+ CEEEEIEERR
sectorborecastas at
0.00 January 2012 (12/13
I S T T S v s e T T A S L ST o BT o BT o B W0 B V= R U R T RV Trsy Mgt Strategy)
ScccoSoccoSoo5o058888880%
N A NN AN AN A~~~ N~ A~~~ & Date Sectorkorecastas at
S £ o d = s ol s w o d s = oo s s oo b January 2011 (11/12
4 @ 4 © 4 © = 4 © 4 @ a
C>3-AO0>-BwO>58A0>-H03-n0 Budget)

Figure 1: Base Rate 2012 to 2016 - latest forecast Nov 2012

Annual Investment Strategy

9. Treasury Management Strategy Statement for 2012/13 was
approved by Council on 23 February 2012. The Council’s
Annual Investment Strategy, which is incorporated in the
Strategy, outlines the Council’s investment priorities as follows:

e security of capital
e liquidity
e yield

The Council will aim to achieve the optimum return (yield) on

investments commensurate with the proper levels of security and
liquidity.

10.Investments are placed with highly credit rated financial
institutions using the creditworthiness matrices described in the
Treasury Management Strategy, which includes sovereign credit
ratings from the rating agencies and the credit default swap
(CDS) overlay information provided by Sector.

11.During the period under review, the unsettled economic climate
and heightened credit concerns made it appropriate to keep
investments short term with a maximum duration of three




Page 29

months. This limit applies to all entities in which the Council is
considering investing, except for the following institutions:

(a) UK Government and related entities such as Local
Authorities — suggested limit remains at 5 years.

(b)UK semi-nationalised institutions e.g. Lloyds / RBS —
suggested limit remains at 1 year. UK ownership provides
considerable conform to investors.

(c)Money market Funds — suggested limit remains at 1 year.

12.Investments held during the first nine months of 2012/13 in
accordance with Sector’s Creditworthiness matrices and changes
to Fitch and Moody’s credit ratings, remained within the Council’s
approved credit criteria limits contained in the Annual Investment
Strategy.

Investment Portfolio

13.Investment rates available in the market have continued at
historical low levels. The average level of funds available for
investment purposes in the nine months of 2012/13 was
£42.936m (£58.085m in 11/12). The level of funds available is
largely dependent on the timing of the Council’s cash flow as a
result of precept payments, receipt of grants, borrowing and
progress on the Capital Programme. These funds are therefore
available on a temporary basis dependant on cash flow
movement.

14.The average level of funds has fallen compared to a year ago
due to using the Council’s surplus funds to support capital
expenditure rather than taking external borrowing. Investment
rates are lower than borrowing rates, therefore it is beneficial to
take less borrowing and reduce the investment portfolio.

15. There are no funds currently invested for periods of a year or
more due to the limited institutions available for investment in the
current market environment; in accordance with the credit criteria

policy.

16.Investment activity during the first nine months of 2012/13
earned a rate of return of 1.50% (1.22% in 11/12). This is 1.09%
(0.74% in 11/12) better than the average 7 day London Inter-
Bank Deposit rate (LIBID) of 0.41% ( 0.48% in 11/12) and 1.00%
(0.72% in 11/12) higher than the average base rate for the
period of 0.50%.The interest earned to date in 2012/13 is in line
with the treasury management budget.



Page 30

17.The average rate of return is higher in 2012/13 than it was a year
ago due to the Council being able to take advantage of higher
interest rates offered by banks in the early part of 2012/13.
These investment interest rates were available as banks needed
to hold higher cash reserves on their balance sheets in
accordance with Government regulations. To attract funds from
institutions, they offered higher interest rates.

18.Figure 2 shows the interest rates available on the market
between 7 days and 1 year and also the rate of return that the
Council has achieved for the first nine months of 2012/13. It
shows that favourable / competitive interest rates have been
obtained for investments whilst ensuring the required liquidity
and security of funds for the Council.

Investment Rates April 2012 - September 2012

= CYC RATE OF RETURN —=BOE BASE == Dzy LIBID
o — 3 Month LIBID —6 Month LIBID =] Year LIBID
%
2.00
1.80
1.40 l\-",rumw ﬁ l",.l"\
1‘2CI K \
1.00 ~ —_—
0.80 B K
0.60 &‘
0.40  T———
0.20
O-OCI T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T
NN N NN NN N N NN & N N N & N N N
DT vy R Ty N A AU ST B B
5 5 5 > > £ £ 5 5 wWwa ooy g o2 o2 o0 0
<< <333 3323325 G Q0223 o Da
1 1 =) <t ] ) ] [l ! !

Figure 2 CYC Investments vs Money Market Rates

19.The higher rate of return on investment activity compared to the
average LIBID rate and base rate for the period is due to the
treasury team continuing to monitor the market and taking
advantage of opportunities when they become available, whilst
ensuring the security of the council’s funds.




Page 31

20.Figure 2 also shows the interest rates available for investment
have markedly fallen in the last quarter of 2012. There are two
major reasons for this. The main reason is the excess liquidity
being provided to the market by Central Banks, such as the
£80bn made available to UK Banks through the Funding for
Lending Scheme at rates of around 0.5%. In return for the
cheaper funding, banks must use this liquidity for onward lending
for mortgages and loans to businesses in an aim to boost the
availability of credit and potential for increased spending/growth
in the wider economy. Banks therefore have access to cheaper
funding which in turn has driven down market rates significantly
in the last quarter.

21.The second important factor is a growing expectation that the
economic recovery will be slow and prolonged and therefore
bank rates and short-term rates will stay lower (i.e. at 0.5%), for
longer. This has dragged down market rates as well to match
future market expectations.

22.Figure 3 shows the investments in the portfolio are diversified
and include deposits in short term call accounts, fixed term
investments and money market funds.

Investment Portfolio at 31st December 2012

M Fixed - £13.00m MW Call- £5.00m MMF - £15.00m

Figure 3 Diversified Investment Portfolio at 31 December 2012

Borrowing Portfolio



Page 32

23.The Council undertakes long term borrowing in accordance with
the investment requirements of the capital programme and all
borrowing is therefore secured against its asset base.

24.The level of borrowing taken by the Council is determined by the
Capital Finance Requirement (the Councils underlying need to
borrow for capital expenditure purposes). Borrowing needs to be
affordable, sustainable and prudent and the treasury
management budget supports the borrowing finance costs in the
longer term.

25. Under regulation, the Council can borrow in advance of need in
line with its future borrowing requirements in accordance with the
Capital Financing Requirement. The markets will continue to be
closely monitored to ensure that advantage is taken of favourable
rates in 2012/13 and the increased borrowing requirement is not
as dependant on interest rates in any one year.

26.0n the reverse side, the Council’s level of borrowing can also be
below the Capital Financing Requirement. This would mean that
instead of increasing the Council’s level of borrowing, surplus
funds held for investment purposes would be utilised instead,
decreasing the level of surplus funds being available for
investment. In the current interest rate environment where
investment rates are below borrowing rates consideration is
given to the value of taking borrowing or whether it is better for
the council to keep investment balances lower. This is referred to
in paragraph 15 above.

27. Therefore, to minimise investment risk, no new borrowing has
been taken during 2012/13 and it is anticipated that no further
borrowing will be undertaken during this financial year. Rates
continue to be monitored in this volatile opportunistic
environment.

28. Sector — the Council’s treasury management advisers - forecast
that overall future Public Works Loans Board (PWLB) rates will
rise, although there is still expected to be volatility in the market
over the coming months.

29. At Monitor 2, it was explained that the Government has
introduced a “certainty rate” from 1 November 2012 which
enables local authorities to access cheaper borrowing rates from
the PWLB - a reduction of 20 basis points. Therefore, Sector’'s
25 year PWLB target rate for new long term borrowing for the



Page 33

quarter was lowered to 3.70% from 3.90% following the
introduction of the “certainty rate”.

30.In general, gilt yields (on which PWLB rates are based) did rise

during the quarter; however table 2 below shows that lower
interest rates were available in November than in October. This
is due to PWLB rates available to local authorities being reduced
by 20 basis points from 1 November 2013 — the certainty rate.

1 Year 5 Year 10 Year 25 Year 50 Year
Low 0.96% 1.48% 2.46% 3.76% 3.91%
Date 05/11/12 09/11/12 09/11/12 09/11/12 30/11/12
High 1.21% 1.88% 2.90% 4.17% 4.34%
Date 17/10/12 25/10/12 25/10/12 22/10/12 22/10/12
Average 1.07% 1.68% 2.66% 3.93% 4.09%

Table 2 — PWLB Borrowing Rates - quarter ended 31.12.2012

31.The Councils long-term borrowing started the year at a level of

32.

£261.6m. A £3m loan was repaid in May 2012 in line with its
maturity date. No new borrowing has been taken in the 1% nine
months of 2012/13. The HRA amounts to 54% of the borrowing
portfolio at £140.3m and the GF is 46% with borrowing at
£118.3m, a total of £258.6m.

Figure 4 shows the fluctuation in PWLB rates since October
2010 when the Government’s Comprehensive Spending Review
increased rates to 1% above qilt yields. It also shows that even,
where PWLB rates available to local authorities fell by 20 basis
points with the introduction of the “certainty rate” on 1 November
2012, that the general downward trend during2012/13, has seen
rates beginning to rise slightly in quarter 4. The triangles

highlight when new borrowing was taken in the previous financial
year 2011/12.



Page 34

Qs
/0

PWLB Rates 01/10/10 - 31/12/12

—5-5) =—10-10% =——=15-15) =—=25-25); =——49/5-50 =A=cyc borrowing

6.00

5.50

5.00

4.50

4.00

3.50

3.00

2.50

2.00

1.50

1.00

0.50

OOO T T T T T T T T T T T T
o o — — — — — — ~ ~ ~ ~ ™~ ~
S 2 ©o ©o © & © © © o o o5 o o
(o] ] i~ ~l o~ i~ i~ (o] o~ i~ o~ ~l ™~ ~l
S 8 8 ¥ & ¥ S ¥ & ¥ I ¥ S J Dbae
< 2 2 L 2 £ ¢ 2 2 2 <2 <2 <2 d
S 5 © © ©o © © o ©o ©o o © o o

Figure 4 — PWLB rates vs CYC Borrowing Levels
33.Figure 5 illustrates the 2012/13 maturity profile of the Council’s

debt portfolio to 31 December 2012. The maturity profile shows
that there is no large concentration of loan maturity in any one
year, thereby spreading the interest rate risk dependency.



Page 35

£ Debt Maturity Profile at 31 December 2012
30,000,000
25,000,000 W HRA
20,000,000 B General
Fund
15,000,000
10,000,000 |
5,000,000 | ‘ II i
c T |II L Illll
OO M~OCO — W0 -0~ OW~OOOC S O oac =
T T DT AN OO0 FIITIODYHDWOOO pae
Nt © 0O NTODONT ODONT ODH —O WOM~G — O
bt i T 0 T Y A Y A o T o B o T O op B R e o s e Y (N € O I K I K'p [ 0 (0 )
OC 0O 000000000000 00D 00 0000000
(o o I o N ot I o I o B ot B o I oV I o I o B I Y A ot I oY I o' ot I ot B Y A Y A o O Y I ! B o I oY I

Figure 5 — Debt Maturity Profile 12/13
Compliance with Prudential Indicators

34.The Prudential Indicators for 2012/13, included in the Treasury
Management Strategy Statement are based on the requirements
of the Council’s capital programme and approved at Council on
23 February 2012.

35.1t is a statutory duty for the Council to determine and keep under
review the “Affordable Borrowing Limits” included in the
Prudential Indicators. The monitoring of the Prudential Indicators
is attached at Annex A, along with the revised limits for the HRA
reform.

36.During the financial year 2012/13 to date the Council has
operated within the treasury limits and Prudential Indicators set
out.

Consultation and Options

37.The report shows the nine month position of the treasury
management portfolio in 2012/13. The treasury management
budget was set in light of the council’s expenditure plans and the
wider economic market conditions, based on advice from Sector
- the Council’s Treasury Management advisors. It is a statutory
requirement to provide the information detailed in the report.




Page 36

Analysis

38.The report is a statutory requirement and as such there are no
specific options to analyse.

Council Plan

39.The Council Plan has five priorities which all require a budget to
achieve. The treasury management function aims to achieve the
optimum return on investments commensurate with the proper
levels of security, and endeavours to minimise the interest
payable by the Council on its debt structure. It thereby
contributes to all Council Plan priorities.

Financial

40.The financial implications are in the body of the report.

Human Resources Implications

41.There are no HR implications as a result of this report.

Equalities

42.There are no equalities implications as a result of this report.

Legal Implications

43.Treasury Management activities have to conform to the Local
Government Act 2003, the Local Authorities (Capital; Finance
and Accounting) (England) Regulations 2003 (S| 2003/3146),
which specifies that the Council is required to have regard to the
CIPFA Prudential Code and the CIPFA Treasury Management
Code of Practice and also the Local Authorities (Capital Finance
and Accounting) (England) (Amendment) Regulations 2008 (Sl
2008/414), which clarifies the requirements of the Minimum
Revenue Provision guidance.

Crime and Disorder Implications

44.There are no crime and disorder implications as a result of this
report.



Page 37

Information Technology Implications

45.There are no IT implications as a result of this report.
Property Implications

46.There are no property implications as a result of this report.
Risk Management

47.The Treasury Management function is a high-risk area because
of the level of large money transactions that take place. As a
result of this there are procedures set out for day to day treasury
management operations that aim to reduce the risk associated
with high volume high value transactions. These are detailed in
the Treasury Management Strategy Statement at the start of
each financial year.

Recommendations

48.Members are required, in accordance with the Local Government
Act 2003 (revised), to:
¢ Note the Treasury Management activities in 2011/12
¢ Note the movements in the Prudential Indicators at Annex A

Reason — to ensure the continued performance of the Council’s
Treasury Management function.



Page 38

Contact Details

Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the
report:
Louise Branford-White lan Floyd - Director of Customer

Technical Finance Manager Business & Support Services
Corporate Finance

Tel No. 551187

Ross Brown

Principal Accountant

Corporate Finance
Tel No. 551207 Report Date 12/02/13

Approved O

Specialist Implications Officer(s)

Name: lan Floyd Name: Andrew Docherty

Title: Director of CBSS Title: Assistant Director -
Governance & ICT

Tel No.: 01904 551100 Tel No.: 01904 551004

Wards Affected: All
Specialist Implication Officers: None

For further information please contact the author of the report

Background Papers
Cash-flow Model 12/13, Investment Register 12/13, PWLB Debt
Register, Capital Financing Requirement 12/13, Venture Fund
12/13, Treasury Management budget 12/13, Statistics 12/13.

Annexes
Annex A — Prudential Indicators 2012/13



Page 39

Prudential Indicators 2012/13 Monitor 3

Annex A

PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS

2012/13
Original
Budget

2012/13
Monitor
3

1)

2)

3a)

Capital Expenditure

To allow the authority to plan for
capital financing as a result of the
capital programme. To enable the
monitoring of capital budgets to
ensure they remain within budget.

Ratio of financing costs to net
revenue stream

This indicator estimates the cost of
borrowing in relation to the net cost
of Council services to be met from
government grant and council
taxpayers. In the case of the HRA
the net revenue stream is the
income from Rents and Subsidy.

Incremental impact of capital
investment decisions - Council
Tax

Shows the actual impact of capital
investment decisions on council tax.
The impact on council tax is a
fundamental indicator of affordability
for the Council to consider when
setting forward plans. The figure
relates to how much of the increase
in council tax is used in financing the
capital programme and any related
revenue implications that flow from
it.

3b)[Incremental impact of capital

investment decisions - Hsg Rents
Shows the actual impact of capital
investment decisions on HRA rent.
For CYC, the HRA planned capital
spend is based on the government's
approved borrowing limit so there is
no impact on HRA rents.

Non - HRA
HRA

£M
67.6
7.8

£M
48.6
8.7

TOTAL

75.4

57.3

Non - HRA
HRA

Increase in
Council Tax
(band D) per
annum

Increase in
average
housing rent
per week

9.2%
2.3%

23.89

0.00

9.7%
2.1%

18.29

0.00




4)

5)

Page 40

Net Borrowing not exceed the
CFR

To ensure that borrowing levels are
prudent over the medium term the
Council’s external borrowing, net of
investments, must only be for a
capital purpose and so not exceed
the CFR.

Capital Financing Requirement as
at 31 March

Indicates the Council's underlying
need to borrow money for capital
purposes. The majority of the capital
programme is funded through
government support, government
grant or the use of capital receipts.
The use of borrowing increases the
CFR.

Non - HRA
HRA
TOTAL

£M
258.5

£M

168.6
140.4

£M
225.6

£M

174.2
140.3

309.0

314.5

6a

'

6b

N

Authorised Limit for external debt
The authorised limit is a level set
above the operational boundary in
acceptance that the operational
boundary may well be breached
because of cash flows. It represents
an absolute maximum level of debt
that could be sustained for only a
short period of time. The council
sets an operational boundary for its
total external debt, gross of
investments, separately identifying
borrowing from other long-term
liabilities for 3 financial years.

Operational Boundary for external
debt -

The operational boundary is a
measure of the most likely, prudent,

level of debt. It takes account of risk

borrowing
other long

term liabilities

£M

337.9
20.0

£M

337.9
20.0

TOTAL

357.9

357.9

borrowing
other long

term liabilities

£M

307.9
20.0

£M

307.9
20.0




Page 41

management and analysis to arrive TOTAL 327.9] 327.9
at the maximum level of debt
projected as part of this prudent
assessment. It is a means by which
the authority manages its external
debt to ensure that it remains within
the self-imposed authority limit. It is
a direct link between the Council’s
plans for capital expenditure; our
estimates of the capital financing
requirement; and estimated
operational cash flow for the year.
7) |Adoption of the CIPFA Code of TM Policy v v
Practice for Treasury Statement
Management 12 TM v v
in Public Services Practices
Ensuring Treasury Management Policy Placed v v
(TM) Practices remain in line with Before
the Code of Practice. Council
Annual v v
Review
Undertaken
A&G named v v
as specified
Scrutiny body
8a) [Upper limit for fixed interest rate
exposure
The Council sets limits to its Net interestre| 104% | 109%
exposures to the effects of changes fixed rate
in interest rates for 3 years. The borrowing /
Council should not be overly investments
exposed to fluctuations in interest Actual Net
rates which can have an adverse interest re
impact on the revenue budget if it is fixed rate
overly exposed to variable rate borrowing /
investments or debts. investments
8b)Upper limit for variable rate
exposure
The Council sets limits to its Net interestre| -4% -9%

exposures to the effects of changes
in interest rates for 3 years. The

Council should not be overly

variable rate
borrowing /

investments




Page 42

exposed to fluctuations in interest Actual Net

rates which can have an adverse interest re

impact on the revenue budget ifitis | variable rate

overly exposed to variable rate borrowing /

investments or debts. investments

9) [Upper limit for total principal £M £M

ums invested for over 364 days 10.0 10.0

To minimise the impact of debt Investments

maturity on the cash flow of the over 364 days| £0 £0

Council. Over exposure to debt
maturity in any one year could mean
that the Council has insufficient
liquidity to meet its repayment
liabilities, and as a result could be
exposed to risk of interest rate
fluctuations in the future where
loans are maturing. The Council
therefore sets limits whereby long-
term loans mature in different
periods thus spreading the risk.

10) Maturity structure of new fixed Upper| Actual
rate borrowing Limit £M
258.6
The Council sets an upper limit for under 12
each forward financial year period months| 30% 2%
for the level of investments that 12 months &
mature in over 364 days. These within 24
limits reduce the liquidity and months| 30% 3%
interest rate risk associated with 24 months &
investing for more than one year. within 5 years| 40% 7%
The limits are set as a percentage of 5 years &
the average balances of the within 10
investment portfolio. years| 40% 15%

10 years &
and abovel 90% 75%

Glossary Of Abbreviations
HRA - Housing Revenue Account

1. In accordance with the Prudential Code, the Prudential Indicators set by full
Council on 23 February 2012 for the financial year 2012/13 must be monitored
and reported at Outturn. The Prudential Indicators are detailed above and the
key points are explained below:



Page 43

2. Indicator 1 - Capital Expenditure: The capital programme expenditure for
2012/13 was originally estimated at £65.1m and at monitor 3 had decreased to
£57.3m. The Capital Programme 2012/13 Monitor 3 report has further detail with
regards to this movement. .

3. Indicator 2 — Ratio of Finance Costs to Net revenue Stream: This indicator
represents how much borrowing for the capital programme will cost as a
percentage of the net revenue stream of the Council. The General Fund indicator
at Monitor 3 is 9.7% compared to a budgeted level of 9.2%, with the marginal
increase due to increased finance costs, as a result of increased provision to
repay borrowing as defined in statute. The Housing Revenue Account (HRA)
version of the indictor is 2.1% compared to the budgeted level of 2.3%, the
reduction is mainly due to a higher HRA balance which earned investment
income than was originally estimated. Under the new self financing regulations,
the increased finance costs to service the additional £121.1m borrowing taken
are covered by the increased housing rent collected by the authority. In the past
this rent was always collected, rent has not risen, but under the housing subsidy
scheme it would have been paid to the Government.

4. Indicator 3 (a) & (b) - Incremental Impact of Capital Investment Decisions on
the Level of Council Tax (3a) and Housing Rents (3b): This indicator shows
the impact of capital investment decision on the bottom line level of Council Tax.
The Council can fund its discretionary capital programme from two main sources,
from borrowing or using capital receipts from the sale of surplus assets. The
Council’s policy is to use capital receipts to fund the Capital programme, where
possible. However in the current economic environment with reduced capital
receipts there is the requirement to use borrowing to support the capital
programme, which has an impact on Council Tax through the revenue cost of
financing the borrowing. The borrowing is not taken unless it is affordable,
sustainable and prudent and can be supported by an existing budget. For the
General Fund at Monitor 3 the increase in Council tax (band D) per annum is
£18.29 compared to £23.89 estimated at budget. The reduction is in line with no
borrowing occurring in the first nine months for 2012/13.

5. Indicator 4 — Net Borrowing not exceed the CFR: In order to ensure that
borrowing levels are prudent over the medium term the Council’s external
borrowing, net of investments, must only be for a capital purpose. This
essentially means that the Council is not borrowing to support revenue
expenditure. Net borrowing should not therefore, except in the short term, have
exceeded the CFR for 2012/13 plus the expected changes to the CFR over
2013/14 and 2014/15. This indicator allows the Council some flexibility to borrow
in advance of its immediate capital needs in 2012/13. The table highlights the
Council’s net borrowing position against the CFR, it confirms that no borrowing
occurred in advance of need and the net borrowing position was below the CFR.

6. Indicator 5 - Capital Financing Requirement (CFR): The CFR represents the
Council’s underlying need to borrow for all capital investment over time. The



Page 44

CFR represents the capital expenditure (which has not yet been paid for by
revenue or other resources) which is required to be funded by borrowing. Under
Statute, the council is permitted to borrow to fund capital expenditure. When
borrowing is undertaken it is not taken for a specific capital scheme but rather to
fund the council’s capital financing requirement as a whole.

7. Indicator 6(a) - Authorised Limit: The authorised limit is the “affordable
borrowing limit” required by s3 of the Local Government Act 2003. The Council
does not have the power to borrow above this level, which is approved at Full
Council every year. The table confirms at Monitor 3 that the Council has
maintained gross borrowing within its authorised limit of £357.9m. Borrowing is
currently £258.6m, the headroom available within this limit allows the Council the
ability to borrow in advance of need in accordance with its 3 year forecast Capital
programme.

8. Indicator 6(b) — Operational Boundary: This is the estimated borrowing position
of the Council during the year. Periods where the actual position is either below
or over the boundary is acceptable subject to the authorised limit not being
breached. At Monitor 3 the actual borrowing level was below the operational
boundary as no borrowing has been taken, even though this could have occurred
in line with the Capital Financing Requirement of the capital programme. This
was in accordance with the strategy to hold off borrowing due to borrowing rates
being much higher than investment rates.

9. Indicator 7 - Adoption of the CIPFA Code of Practice in Treasury
Management: In accordance with the Prudential Code, the Council has adopted
the CIPFA Treasury Management in the Public Services Code of Practice “the
Code” prior to the beginning of the financial year. The table shows the code has
been adhered to.

10. Indicator 8(a) & (b) - Upper Limit for Fixed and Variable Interest rate
Exposure: Interest rate exposure on debt is positive due to it being in relation to
interest paid and on investments is negative as it is interest being received.
When the variable and fixed interest rates are totalled, it will always be 100%.
The majority of the interest received for the Council relates to variable rated
investments, where as the interest paid on debt is fixed. The limits set in the
budget are similar to those at Monitor 3 at 109% for fixed interest rate exposure
and —9% for variable interest rate exposure.

11.Indicator 9 - Upper Limit for total principal sums invested for over 364
days: This has been set at £10m and is approximately 25% of the average
portfolio throughout the year. To date no investments for longer than 364 days
have been taken due to the credit ratings assigned to counterparties. In the
current environment it is viewed as high risk to have long term exposure. The
banks which are nationalised have the backing of government and therefore
investment up to 1 year are considered.



Page 45

12.Indicator 10 - Maturity Structure of Fixed rate Borrowing: The borrowing
portfolio is spread across different time periods to ensure that the Council is not
exposed to the requirement to take new borrowing in any one year and be
exposed to interest rates in any one year. At Monitor 3 the borrowing portfolio
maturity profile was within the limits set as represented in the table.



Page 46

This page is intentionally left blank



T
&

Page 47 Agenda Item 8

CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

Audit & Governance 13 February 2013

Report of the Director of Customer & Business Support Services

Scrutiny of Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Prudential
Indicators for 2013/14 to 2017/2018

Summary

In accordance with the requirements of the revised Chartered Institute of
Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Treasury Management in the Public
Services: Code of Practice and Cross-Sectoral Guidance (“the Code”) which
was published in 2011, Audit & Governance Committee will be responsible for
ensuring effective scrutiny of the treasury management strategy and policies.

The Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Prudential Indicators
2013/14 to 2017/18 is attached at Appendix A, along with the required
annexes. This will be the start of the 2013/14 cycle of reports which includes
2 monitoring reports, a mid-year review report and the 2013/14 outturn report.

Background

The areas covered in the treasury management strategy report statement and
prudential indicators for 2013/14 to 2017/18 are as required in legislation and
“the code”.

Points of interest to assist Members in the scrutiny of the treasury
management strategy and prudential indicators attached at Appendix A are as
follows:
a) Prudential Indicator 1 — capital expenditure (para12) —is in line with the
Capital programme budget report 13/14 to 17/18
b) Prudential Indicator 2 — Capital Financing Requirement (para 17) the
Council’s need to borrow is fairly flat over the 5 year period. Even
though the capital programme increases, this is offset by the provision to
repay debt and therefore the CFR remains static at around £320m
c) Minimum Revenue Provision policy statement (at para 18) provides
further explanation of the requirement to set aside a provision to repay
debt.
d) The affordability prudential indicators at show the ratio of finance costs
to net revenue stream of the council (at para 27) and Prudential



Page 48

Indicator 4 - shows the increase in cost to a council tax band D payer of
increasing capital expenditure (at para 29). The indicator is in line with
the CFR and in future years there is little impact — zero — as no
borrowing is estimated to be taken.

e) The Council had a debt position of £258.6m at an interest rate of 3.76%
and an investment portfolio at£33m earning £1.5%

f) Prudential Indicator 6 - the authorised borrowing limit (para 37) and the
operational boundary (para 38) represent the control of the level of debt
of the Council. The authorised borrowing limit should never be
breached and if it needs to be changed is reported to full Council

g) The borrowing strategy estimates the base rate to rise in Q1 2015, with
gilt yield rising gradually in the coming years. The target borrowing rate
set for 2013/14 is 4% (at para 48)

h) Policy on Borrowing in Advance of Need (para 54) is unlikely for
2013/14 and if opportunities present themselves to repay debt this will
be undertaken, although it is unlikely in the current environment (para
58)

i) The Council’s Creditworthiness Policy is detailed (para’s 72 to 78) and
also at Annex C the types of investments — specified and non-specified.

j) The Investment Strategy (at para 83) estimates that banks will be
relatively liquid in the next two years and therefore interest rates to be
earned on investments are low at 0.5% / 0.6%.

Members of Audit & Governance Committee will receive treasury
management reports on a regular basis, along with training sessions as
required by the regulations.

Consultation
Not applicable.

Options

It is a statutory requirement under Local Government Act 2003(as amended)
for the council to operate in accordance with the CIPFA prudential Code and
the CIPFA Treasury Management in the Public Services Code of Practice the
“Code”. The Council approved the terms of reference in the Constitution to
include that Audit & Governance Committee scrutinise the Treasury
Management Strategy and Monitoring reports. No alternative options are
available.

Council Plan

Treasury management is an integral part of the council’s finances providing for
cash flow management and financing of capital schemes. It aims to ensure
that the council maximises its return on investments, (whilst the priority is for



10.

11.

Page 49

security of capital and liquidity of funds) and minimises the cost of its debts.
This allows more resources to be freed up to invest in the Council’s key
priority areas as set out in the council plan. It therefore underpins all of the
council’s aims.

Implications

The implications are

. Financial — the security of the Councils capital funds is a priority,
maximising returns on investments is still key along with minimising the
finance costs of debt.

« Human Resources - there are no human resource implications to this
report.

« Equalities - there are no equality implications to this report.

. Legal — Treasury Management activities have to conform to the Local
Government Act 2003, the Local Authorities (Capital; Finance and
Accounting) (England) Regulations 2003 (SI 2003/3146) and the Local
Authorities (Capital Finance and Accounting) (England) (Amendment)
Regulations 2008 (S| 2008/414)

« Crime and Disorder - there are no crime and disorder implications to this
report.

. Information Technology - there are no information technology implications
to this report.

« Property —there are no property implications to this report.

. Other - the revised code requires officers and members to scrutinise and
manage the treasury function.

Risk Management

The treasury management function is a high-risk area because of the volume
and level of large money transactions. As a result of this the Local
Government Act 2003 (as amended), the CIPFA Prudential Code and the
CIPFA Treasury Management in the Public Services Code of Practice 2011
(the code) are all adhered to as required.

Recommendations
That Audit & Governance Committee note the Treasury Management Strategy
Statement and Prudential Indicators for 2013/14 to 2017/18 at Appendix A.

Reason: That those responsible for scrutiny and governance arrangements
are updated on a regular basis to ensure that those implementing policies and
executing transactions have properly fulfilled their responsibilities with regard
to delegation and reporting.



Page 50

Contact Details

Author: Chief Officer responsible for the
report:

Louise Branford-White lan Floyd

Technical Finance Manager Director of Customer & Business

01904 551187 Support Services
Report v Date 13/02/13
approved

Specialist Implications Officer(s) None

Wards Affected: List wards or tick box to indicate all  All v

For further information please contact the author of this report
Background Working Papers

Local Government Act 2003 and amendments

CIPFA Prudential Code

CIPFA Treasury Management in the Public Services: Code of Practice
and Cross-Sectoral Guidance (“the Code”)

Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Prudential Indicators for
2013/14 to 2017/18



Page 51

3
<2 city oOF

YORK |
§ Appendix A

Cabinet 12 February 2013
Report of the Cabinet Member for Corporate Services

Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Prudential
Indicators for 2013/14 to 2017/18

Purpose

1. The purpose of this report is to ask the Cabinet to recommend

that Council approve the:

¢ Integrated treasury management strategy statement

including the annual investment strategy and the
minimum revenue provision policy statement;
Prudential indicators for 2013/14 to 2017/18
Revised treasury management policy statement
Specified and non-specified investments schedule
Treasury management scheme of delegation and role of
the section 151 officer

Background

2. The Council is required to operate a balanced budget, which
broadly means that cash raised during the year will meet cash
expenditure. The first function of the treasury management
operation is to ensure that this cash flow is adequately planned,
with cash being available when it is needed. Surplus monies are
invested in low risk counterparties or instruments commensurate
with the Council’s low risk appetite, providing adequate liquidity
initially before considering investment return.

3. The second main function of the treasury management service is
the funding of the Council’s capital programme. The capital
programme provides a guide to the borrowing need of the
Council, essentially the longer term cash flow planning to ensure
that the Council can meet its capital spending obligations. This
management of longer term cash may involve arranging long or
short term loans, or using longer term cash flow surpluses. On
occasion any debt previously drawn may be restructured to meet
Council risk or cost objectives.




Page 52

4. CIPFA (Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy)
defines treasury management as:

“The management of the local authority’s investments and cash
flows, its banking, money market and capital market transactions;
the effective control of the risks associated with those activities;
and the pursuit of optimum performance consistent with those
risks. ”

Reporting requirements

5. The Council is required to receive and approve, as a minimum,
three main reports each year, which incorporate a variety of
polices, estimates and actuals. The three reports are:

a) Treasury mangement strategy statement and prudential
indicators report (this report) — which covers the capital
plans including prudential indicators, the minimum revenue
provision policy, the treasury managment strategy, the
annual investment strategy;

b) A Mid Year Treasury Management Report — updates
members with whether the treasury activities are meeting the
strategy, whether any policies require revision, amending
prudential indicators if necessary;

c) An Annual Treasury Report — updates on treasury activity/
operations for the year and compares actual prudential
indicators with estimates in the strategy.

6. These reports are required to be adequately scrutinised by
committee before being recommended to the Council. The
scrutiny role is undertaken by the Audit & Governance
Committee.

7. The CIPFA Code requires the responsible officer to ensure that
members with responsibility for treasury management receive
adequate training in treasury management. This especially
applies to members responsibe for scrutiny. The training
needs of treasury management officers is also periodically
reviewed.




Page 53

Treasury Management Strategy for 2013/14

8. The treasury managment strategy for 2013/14 covers two main

areas:

a) Capital Issues 2013/14 to 2017/18 -

Prudential Indicators relating to the Capital Programme;
Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Policy Statement .

Prudential Indicators to assess affordability of the Capital
programme

b) Treasury management Issues — Treasury Management
Strategy

Prudential Indicators which will limit the treasury
management risk and activities of the Council;

the current treasury position;

Economic background and prospects for interest rates;
the borrowing strategy;

Prudential indicators;

policy on borrowing in advance of need,;

debt rescheduling;

investment policy;

creditworthiness policy;

investment strategy;

policy on use of external service providers;

Scheme of delegation and the role of teh S151 officer

9. These elemements cover the statutory and regulatory
requirements of the Local Government Act 2003, the CIPFA
Prudential Code, the Communities and Local Government
(CLG) Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Guidance, the
CIPFA Treasury Management Code and the CLG Investment
Guidance.

The Capital Prudential Indicators 2013/14 — 2017/18

10. The Council’s capital expenditure plans are the key driver of
treasury management activity. The Council’s capital
expenditure plans are the subject of a separate report the
Capital Programme Budget 2013/14 to 2017/18. The output of
the capital programme is reflected in this report in the capital
prudential indicators, which are designed to assist member’s




Page 54

overview of the council’s capital programme to ensure that the
capital expenditure plans are affordable, sustainable and

prudent.

11. The capital prudential indicators (Pl) along with the treasury
management prudential indicators (Pl) are included throughout
the report:

Pl 1:
Pl 2:
Pl 3:
Pl4&5:

PI6A:
Pl 6B:
Pl 6C:
Pl 7:

Pl 8:
Pl 9:

Capital Expenditure

Capital financing requirement

Ratio of financing cost to Net revenue stream
Incremental impact of capital investment
decisions on council tax and housing rent
Affordable borrowing limit

Operational boundary

HRA debt Limit

Interest rate exposure for fixed and variable
rated debt

Maturity structure of debt

Surplus funds invested >3654 days

12.Prudential Indicator 1 - Capital Expenditure. This prudential
Indicator is a summary of the Council’s capital expenditure
plans forming part of this budget cycle, where detail is provided
in the Capital Programme Budget 13/14 to 17/18 report:

Capital 2012/13 | 2013/14 | 2014/15 | 2015/16 | 2016/17 | 2017/18
Expenditure £m| Estimate | Estimate | Estimate | Estimate | Estimate | Estimate
Non-HRA 48.6 56.6 24.2 22.5 19.0 13.0
HRA existing 8.7 10.2 8.2 71 8.8 7.2

Total 57.3 66.8 32.4 29.6 27.8 20.2

Table 1: Capital Expenditure

13.Table 1 details the capital expenditure of the Council excluding
other long term liabilities, such as PFI and leasing
arrangements which already include borrowing instruments.
There were no PF|l schemes forecast to be taken in 2013/14.

14. Prudential Indicator 2 - The Capital Financing Requirement
(CFR) (Council’s Borrowing Need); the second prudential
indicator is the Council’s Capital Financing Requirement (CFR).
The CFR is simply the total historic outstanding capital
expenditure which has not yet been paid for from either revenue
or capital resources. It is essentially a measure of the Council’s
underlying borrowing need. Any capital expenditure above,




Page 55

which has not immediately been paid for and will be funded by
borrowing, will increase the CFR.

15. The CFR does not increase indefinitely, because the minimum
revenue provision (MRP) is a statutory annual revenue charge,
which broadly reduces the borrowing need in line with each
assets life. Therefore, the CFR is reduced with this provision to
repay debt.

16. The CFR includes any other long term liabilities (e.g. PFI
schemes, finance leases). Whilst these increases the CFR, and
therefore the Council’s overall borrowing requirement, these
types of scheme include a borrowing facility and so the Council
is not required to separately borrow for these schemes. The
Council currently has a limit to cover such schemes of £20m
included within the CFR.

17.Table 2 below, shows the Capital Financing Requirement,
excluding other long term liabilities:

Capital Financing| 2012/13 | 2013/14 | 2014/15 | 2015/16 | 2016/17 | 2017/18
Requirement £m | Estimate | Estimate | Estimate | Estimate | Estimate | Estimate
Non-HRA CFR 174.2 180.9 181.9 181.9 180.7 175.3
HRA existing 18.8 18.8 18.8 18.8 18.8 18.8
HRA settlement 121.5 121.5 121.5 121.5 121.5 121.5
HRA CFR 140.3 140.3 140.3 140.3 140.3 140.3
Total CFR 314.5 321.2 322.2 322.2 321.0 315.6

Table 2: Capital Financing Requirement (CFR)
Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Policy Statement

18.The Council is required to pay off an element of the
accumulated General Fund (non-HRA) capital expenditure
each year (the CFR) through a revenue charge (the minimum
revenue provision - MRP), although it is also allowed to
undertake additional voluntary payments if required (voluntary
revenue provision - VRP).

19. CLG Regulations (statutory Instrument (Sl) 2008 no.414 s4)
have been issued which require full Council to approve an MRP
Statement in advance of each year. The guidance offers four
main options under which MRP could be made, with an
overriding recommendation that the Council should make
prudent provision to redeem its debt liability over a period which
is reasonably commensurate with that over which the capital
expenditure is estimated to provide benefits.

20. The Council is recommended to approve the following MRP
Statement. For capital expenditure incurred before 1 April 2008




Page 56

or which in the future will be Supported Capital Expenditure, the
MRP policy will be:

e Existing practice - MRP will follow the existing practice
outlined in former CLG regulations (S28 in SI 2003 no.
3146)

21. This option provides for an approximate 4% reduction in the
borrowing need (CFR) each year.

22. From 1 April 2008 for all unsupported borrowing (including PFI
and finance leases) the MRP policy will be

e Asset Life Method — MRP will be based on the
estimated life of the assets, in accordance with the
proposed regulations (this option must be applied for any
expenditure capitalised under a Capitalisation Direction)
(option D);

23. This option provides for a reduction in the borrowing need over
approximately the asset’s life. The asset life is an absolute
maximum and wherever possible the debt should be repaid over
a shorter period. Estimated asset life periods will be determined
under delegated powers. It should be noted that with all debts,
the longer the repayment period the more is paid in interest over
the period of the loan. It is therefore deemed as prudent to
reduce the period over which the repayments are made.

24.No revenue charge is currently required for the HRA under the
HRA self-financing reform in the next 4 years. Under the HRA
reform the HRA will be required to charge depreciation on its
assets, which will have an increased revenue cost effect. In
order to address any possible adverse impact in the next 4
years, regulations allow the Major Repairs Allowance to be used
as a proxy for depreciation and for the depreciation charge to be
reversed therefore, having no revenue impact on council tax.
Further clarification on depreciation will be provided in future
years.

25.Repayments included in annual PFI or finance leases are also
applied as MRP.

Affordability Prudential Indicators

26. Affordability Prudential Indicators - The prudential indicators
mentioned so far in the report cover the overall capital
programme and the control of borrowing through the capital
financing requirement (CFR). In addition, it is necessary to
assess the affordability of the Council’s capital investment




Page 57

plans. These prudential indicators provide an indication of the
impact of the capital programme investment plans on the
Council’s overall finances.

27.Prudential Indicator 3 - Ratio of financing costs to net

revenue stream. This indicator identifies the trend in the cost
of capital (borrowing and other long-term obligation costs net of
investment income) and compares it to the Council’s net
revenue stream.

% 2012/13 | 2013/14 | 2014/15 | 2015/16 | 2016/17 | 2017/18
Estimate | Estimate | Estimate | Estimate | Estimate | Estimate

Non-HRA 9.73% 10.85% 11.43% 10.45% 11.54% 11.62%

HRA 2.05% 2.27% 2.12% 1.71% 1.68% 1.35%

Table 3: Ratio of financing costs to net revenue stream

28. The estimates of financing costs include current commitments

29.

and the proposals in the Capital programme Budget 2013/14 to
2017/18 report.

Prudential Indicator 4 - Incremental impact of capital
investment decisions on council tax. This indicator identifies
the revenue costs associated with proposed changes to the
five-year capital programme recommended in the Capital
programme 2012/13 to 2016/17 budget report and compared to
the Council’s existing approved commitments and current plans.

The assumptions are based on the budget.

£ 2012/13 | 2013/14 | 2014/15 | 2015/16 | 2016/17 | 2017/18

Estimate | Estimate | Estimate | Estimate | Estimate | Estimate
Council tax - 18.29 14.43 4.87 1.00 0.00 0.00
band D

Table 4: - Incremental impact of capital investment decisions on the
band D council tax

30.

Prudential Indicator 5 - Incremental impact of capital

investment decisions on housing rent levels. Similar to the
council tax calculation, this indicator identifies the trend in the
cost of proposed changes in the housing capital programme
recommended in the capital programme budget report
compared to the Council’s existing commitments and current
plans, expressed as a discrete impact on weekly rent levels.
This indicator is zero as the housing rent levels are set by
Government and is not directly impacted by the Council's capital

plans.




Page 58

£ 2012/13 | 2013/14 | 2014/15 | 2015/16 | 2016/17 | 2017/18
Estimate | Estimate | Estimate | Estimate | Estimate | Estimate

Weekly

housing rent £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00

levels

Table 5 - Incremental impact of capital investment decisions on
housing rent levels

Treasury Management Strategy

31. The capital prudential indicators set out above ensure that the
Council’s capital programme / expenditure plans are affordable,
sustainable and prudent. The treasury management function
ensures that the Council’s cash is available to meet the
Council’s capital programme requirements and also revenue
activity needs in accordance with the Local Government Act
2003 and relevant professional codes

32. The treasury management fundction involves both the
forecasting of the cash flow and, where capital plans are
require, the organisation of approporiate borrowing facilities.
The strategy covers the prudential / treasury indicators, the
current and projected debt positions and the annual investment

strategy.
Current Portfolio Position

33.The Council’s treasury portfolio position at 31 December 2012

is detailed below in table 6:

Institution Type Principal Average Rate
Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) — £238.6m 3.61%
Money borrowed from the Debt Mgt

Office (Treasury Agency)

Market Loans

Club Loan — A loan taken in conjunction £10.0m 7.155%
with 2 other Authorities

LOBO Loan — Lender Option Borrower £10.0m 3.74%
Option

Total Gross Borrowing (GF & HRA) £258.6 3.76%
Total Investments £ 33.0 1.5%

Table 6: Current position at 31 December 2012

34.The Council at 31 December 2012 had £258.6m of fixed
interest rate debt, of which £139.9m was HRA and £118.7m
General Fund. Investment balance was £33.0m. The level of
investments continues to fall as no borrowing has occurred
during 2012/13 to date and the capital programme continues to

spend.




Page 59

35. Further to the current treasury management position above, it

is key that the council operates its treasury management
activities within defined prudential indicator limits. One of these
is that the Council needs to ensure that its total gross debt, does
not, except in the short term, exceed the total of the Capital
Financimng Requirement (CFR) in the preceding year 2011/12
plus the estimates of any additional CFR for 2012/13 and the
following two financial years . This allows the flexibility to borrow
in advance of need and ensures that borrowing is for a capital
purpose and that borrowing is not undertaken for revenue
purposes.

36. Table 7 shows that the estimated gross debt position of the

Council does not exceed the underlying capital borrowing need
(the CFR). The Director of Customer Business & Support
Services (S151 Officer) confirms that the Council complied with
this prudential indicator and does not envisage difficulties for
the future.

Em 2012/13 | 2014/15 | 2014/15 | 2015/16 | 2016/17 | 2017/18
Estimate | Estimate | Estimate | Estimate | Estimate | Estimate
External Debt 258.1 287.7 289.7 291.7 293.7 295.7
Total CFR 314.5 321.2 322.2 322.2 3211 315.6
Under/(over) Under | Under | Under | Under | Under | Under
Borrowed

Table 7: External Debt< Capital Financing Requirement

Prudential Indicators: Limits on Authority to Borrow

37.Prudential Indicator 6A — Authorised Borrowing Limit - It is
a statutory duty under Section 3 (1) of the Local Government
Act 2003 and supporting regulations, for the Council to
determine and keep under review how much it can afford to
borrow. The amount so determined is termed the “Authorised
Borrowing Limit”, and represents a control on the maximum
level of debt. This is a limit beyond which external debt is
prohibited, and this limit needs to be set or revised by the full
Council. It reflects the level of external debt which, while not
desired, could be afforded in the short term, but is not
sustainable in the longer term.

Authorised Limit £m 2012/13 | 2013/14 | 2014/15 | 2015/16 | 2016/17 | 2017/18
Estimate| Estimate | Estimate | Estimate | Estimate | Estimate
Borrowing 337.9 342.3 342.9 342.9 342.2 341.0
Other Long term liabilities 20 20 20 20 20 20
Total 357.9 362.3 362.9 362.9 362.2 361.0

Table 8: Authorised Borrowing Limit




Page 60

38. Prudential Indicator 6B — Operational Boundary. In addition to

the “authorised Borrowing Limit”, there is a limit which is the
maximum level of debt allowed for, on an ongoing operational
purpose. This is the Operational Boundary. The Operational

Boundary in reality would only be breached because of in year
In most cases, this would be a similar

cash flow movements.

figure to the CFR, but may be lower or higher depending on the

levels of actual debt

Operational Boundary [2012/13 | 2013/14 | 2014/15 | 2015/16 | 2016/17 | 2017/18
£m Estimate| Estimate | Estimate | Estimate | Estimate | Estimate
Borrowing 307.9 332.9 332.9 332.9 332.2 331.0
Other Long term liabilities 20 20 20 20 20 20
Total 327.9 352.9 352.9 352.9 352.2 351.0
Table 9: Operational Boundary
39. Separately, the Council is also limited to a maximum HRA CFR
through the HRA self-financing regime, known as the HRA Debt
Limit. This limit is currently:
HRA Debt Limit £m 2012/13 | 2013/14 | 2014/15 | 2015/16 | 2016/17 | 2017/18
Estimate| Estimate | Estimate | Estimate | Estimate | Estimate
Total HRA 145.97 | 145.97 | 14597 | 14597 | 14597 | 145.97

Economic Background

40. The economic situation is the background to which all treasury

Table 10: HRA Debt Limit

management activities operate. It assists in the formation of
the treasury management strategy as it details the current

economic and market environment. Further information on the

current economic environment is available on request.

Prospects for Interest Rates

41. Current interest rates and the future direction of both long term

and short term interest rates have a major influence on the
overall treasury management strategy and affects both
investment and borrowing decisions. To facilitate treasury
management officers in making informed investment and
borrowing decisions the Council contracts Sector as its treasury

adviser. Part of their service is to assist the Council in
formulating a view on interest rates. Annex A draws together a

number of current City forecasts for short term (Bank Rate) and
longer fixed interests rates. Table 11 gives Sector’s central

view:




Page 61

Annual Bank Rate PWLB Borrowing Rates
Average % (including certainty rate adjustment)
5 year 25 year 50 year

Dec 2012 0.50 1.50 3.70 3.90
March 2013 0.50 1.50 3.80 4.00
June 2013 0.50 1.50 3.80 4.00
Sept 2013 0.50 1.60 3.80 4.00
Dec 2013 0.50 1.60 3.80 4.00
March 2014 0.50 1.70 3.90 4.10
June 2014 0.50 1.70 3.90 4.10
Sept 2014 0.50 1.80 4.00 4.20
Dec 2014 0.50 2.00 4.10 4.30
March 2015 0.75 2.20 4.30 4.50
June 2015 1.00 2.30 4.40 4.60
Sept 2015 1.25 2.50 4.60 4.80
Dec 2015 1.50 2.70 4.80 5.00
March 2016 1.75 2.90 5.00 5.20

Table 11 — Sector’'s Bank Rate forecast for financial year ends

42. The economic recovery in the UK since 2008 has been the
worst and slowest recovery in recent history, although the
economy returned to positive growth in the third quarter of
2012. Growth prospects are weak and consumer spending, the
usual driving force of recovery, is likely to remain under
pressure due to consumers focusing on repayment of personal
debt, inflation eroding disposable income, general malaise
about the economy and employment fears.

43. The primary drivers of the UK economy are likely to remain
external. 40% of UK exports go to the Euozone so the
difficulties in this area are likely to continue to hinder UK
growth. The US, the main world economy, faces similar debt
problems to the UK, but urgently needs to resolve the fiscal cliff
now that the the Presidential elections are out of the way. The
resulting US fiscal tightening and continuing Eurozone
problems will depress UK growth and is likely to see the UK
deficit reduction plans slip.

44, This challenging and uncertain economic outlook has several
key treasury mangement implications:

e The Eurozone sovereign debt difficulties provide a clear
indication of high counterparty risk. This continues to suggest
the use of higher quality counterparties for shorter time periods;

¢ Investment returns are likely to remain relatively low during
2013/14 and beyond;




Page 62

e Borrowing interest rates continue to be attractive and may
remain relatively low for some time. The timing of any
borrowing will need to be monitored carefully;

e There will remain a cost of carry — any borrowing undertaken
that results in an increase in investments will incur a revenue
loss between borrowing costs and investment returns

Borrowing Strategy

45.

46.

47.

48

49.

The Council undertakes long term borrowing in accordance with
the capital expenditure requirements of the capital programme.
The Council's borrowing requirement is known as the Capital
Financing Requirement (CFR) as explained above in paragraph
15. As a result of the capital programme 2013/14 to 2017/18 the
borrowing is projected to increase by £8.050m over the next 5
years. The CFR (the Council’s actual need to borrow) does not
necessarily increase by this £8.050m as a minimum amount of
revenue provision is set aside every year in accordance with
statutory requirement and this therefore reduces the actual
amount that is required to be borrowed. This will see the level of
debt maintained around £258.6m.

The borrowing strategy takes into account the borrowing
requirement, the current economic and market environments and
is also influenced by the above interest rate forecast. The Council
is currently maintaining an under-borrowed position. This means
that the capital borrowing need (the Capital Financing
Requirement), has not been fully funded with loan debt as cash
supporting the Council’s reserves, balances and cash flow has
been used as a temporary measure. This strategy is prudent as
investment returns are low and counterparty risk is relatively high.

It is therefore beneficial to have a borrowing strategy where
consideration is given to taking some longer term borrowing if
favourable rates arise and also use some cash reserves.

. External borrowing will be considered throughout the financial

year when interest rates seem most favourable. A target
interest rate in light of table11 above is 4%. This will enable
borrowing to be taken through the year at different time
periods. Consideration will also be given to the maturity profile
of the debt portfolio so the Council is not exposed to the
concentration of debt being in any one year.

Against this background and the risks within the economic
forecast, caution will be adopted with the 2013/14 treasury




Page 63

operations. The Director of Customer Busienss and Support
Services will monitor interest rates in financial markets and adopt
a pragmatic approach to changing circumstances:

if it was felt that there was a significant risk of a sharp FALL in
long and short term rates, e.g. due to a marked increase of
risks around relapse into recession or of risks of deflation, then
long term borrowings will be postponed, and potential
rescheduling from fixed rate funding into short term borrowing
will be considered.

if it was felt that there was a significant risk of a much sharper
RISE in long and short term rates than that currently forecast,
perhaps arising from a greater than expected increase in world
economic activity or a sudden increase in inflation risks, then
the portfolio position will be re-appraised with the likely action
that fixed rate funding will be drawn whilst interest rates were
still relatively cheap.

50. The HRA strategy in 2013/14 for borrowing will be the same as
the borrowing strategy described above for the whole Council.
However, it is not expecxted that the HRA will take any further
borrowing in teh forseeable future. The HRA Business Plan will
guide and influence the overall HRA borrowing strategy.

51. All decisions will be reported to the appropriate decision making
body — Cabinet - at the next available opportunity.

Prudential Indicators — Limits on Borrowing Activity

52. There are three debt / borrowing related prudential indicators.
The purpose of these are to constrain the activity of the
treasury function within certain limits, thereby managing risk
and reducing the impact of any adverse movement in interest
rates. However, if these are set to be too restrictive they will
impair the opportunities to reduce costs / improve performance.
The indicators are:

Upper limits on variable interest rate exposure. This identifies
a maximum limit for variable interest rates based upon the
debt position net of investments

Upper limits on fixed interest rate exposure. This is similar to
the previous indicator and covers a maximum limit on fixed
interest rates;




Page 64

e Maturity structure of borrowing. This gross limit is set to
reduce the Council’s exposure to large fixed rate sums falling
due for refinancing in a confined number of years.

53. These three debt/borrowing related prudential indicators are
calculated to include the debt undertaken for the HRA as well
as the remaining borrowing debt portfolio.

£m 2013/14 | 2014/15 | 2015/16 | 2016/17 | 2017/18
Estimate | Estimate | Estimate | Estimate | Estimate

Interest rate
Exposure

Upper Upper Upper Upper Upper

Limits on fixed

interest rates 109% 109% 109% 109% 109%
based on net

debt

Limits on

variable -9% -9% -9% -9% -9%

interest rates
based on net

debt
Maturity Structure of borrowing 2012/13
Lower Upper

Under 12 months 0% 30%
12 months to 2 years 0% 30%
2 years to 5 years 0% 40%
5 years to 10 years 10% 50%
10 years and above 30% 90%

Table 12: Limits on Interest rate exposure and the Maturity
Structure of Borrowing

Policy on Borrowing in Advance of Need

54. The Council will not borrow more, than or in advance of its
needs, purely in order to profit from the investment of the extra
sums borrowed.

55. Under regulation, the Council can borrow in advance of need in
line with its future borrowing requirements in accordance with
the Capital Financing Requirement. Any borrowing decision in
advance of need will be considered carefully to ensure that
value for money can be demonstrated, it is affordable,
sustainable & prudent, that the treasury management revenue
budget can support the borrowing finance costs in the longer
term and that the Council can ensure the security of such funds
if invested.

56. Borrowing in advance will be made within the constraints of the
CIPFA Prudential Code that ensures that total gross debt, does
not, except in the short term, exceed the total of the CFR in the




Page 65

preceding year 2012/13 plus the estimates of any additional CFR
for 2013/14 and the following two financial years.

57.Risks associated with any borrowing in advance activity will be
subject to prior appraisal and subsequent reporting through the
mid-year or annual reporting mechanism.

Debt Rescheduling

58. It is forecast that short term borrowing rates will be
considerably cheaper than longer term fixed interest rates in
the forseeable future. Therefore, there may be potential
opportunities to generate savings by switching from long term
debt to short term debt. However, these savings will need to
be considered in the light of the current treasury management
position, the short term nature of the loans, the costs of
premiums involved in premature repayment for existing debt
and the likely cost of refinancing those short-term loans, once
they mature.

59. Debt rescheduling will also be considered for the HRA and the
costs and benefits assessed to ensure value for money.

60. The reasons for any rescheduling to take place will include:

a) the generation of cash savings and / or discounted cash flow
savings;
b) helping to fulfil the strategy outlined above, and

c) enhancing the balance of the portfolio (amend the maturity
profile and/or the balance of volatility).

61. Consideration will also be given to identify if there is any
residual potential left for making savings by running down
investment balances to repay debt prematurely as short term
rates on investments are likely to be lower than rates paid on
current debt.

62. Any rescheduling will be reported to Cabinet, in accordance
with the usual monitoring cycle.

Annual Investment Strategy

Investment Policy

63. The Council’s investment policy has regard to the Communities
and Local Government’s (CLG) Guidance on Local
Government Investments (“the Guidance”) and the 2011
CIPFA’s Treasury Management in Public Services Code of




64.

65.

66.

67.

68.

69.

Page 66

Practice and Cross Sectoral Guidance Notes (“the CIPFA TM
Code”).

The Council’s investment priorities are the security of capital
and liquidity of its investments. The Council also aims to
achieve the optimum return on its investments commensurate
with proper levels of security and liquidity.

The borrowing of monies specifically to invest or lend on and
make a return is unlawful and the Council will not engage in
such activity.

In accordance with guidance from the CLG and CIPFA, and in
order to minimise the risk to investments, the Council has
below clearly stipulated the minimum acceptable credit quality
of counterparties for inclusion on the lending list. The
creditworthiness methodology used to create the counterparty
list fully accounts for the ratings, watches and outlooks
published by all three ratings agencies with a full understanding
of what these reflect in the eyes of each agency. Using the
Sector ratings service potential counterparty ratings are
monitored on a real time basis with knowledge of any changes
notified electronically as the agencies notify modifications.

Furthermore, the Council’s officers recognise that ratings
should not be the sole determinant of the quality of an
institution and that it is important to continually assess and
monitor the financial sector on both a micro and macro basis
and in relation to the economic and political environments in
which institutions operate. The assessment will also take
account of information that reflects the opinion of the markets.
To this end the Council will engage with its advisors to maintain
a monitor on market pricing such as “credit default swaps” and
overlay that information on top of the credit ratings. This is fully
integrated into the credit methodology provided by the advisors,
Sector in producing its colour codings which show the varying
degrees of suggested creditworthiness.

Other information sources used will include the financial press,
share price and other such information pertaining to the
banking sector in order to establish the most robust scrutiny
process on the suitability of potential investment counterparties.

The aim of the strategy is to generate a list of highly
creditworthy counterparties which will also enable
diversification and thus avoidance of concentration risk. The




Page 67

intention of the strategy is to provide security of investment and
minimisation of risk.

70. Investment instruments identified for use in the financial year
are listed in annex B under the ‘specified’ and ‘non-specified’
investments categories. Counterparty limits will be as set out in
the later section - the Investment Strategy.

71.The Council continues to take a prudent approach to investing
funds as set out in the Creditworthiness Policy below.

Creditworthiness Policy

72.This Council applies the creditworthiness service provided by
Sector. This service employees a sophisticated modelling
approach with credit ratings from the three main credit rating
agencies - Fitch, Moody’s and Standard and Poor’s. The credit
ratings of counterparties are supplemented with the following
overlays:

e credit watches and credit outlooks from credit rating
agencies

e CDS spreads to give early warning of likely changes in
credit ratings

e sovereign ratings to select counterparties from only the
most creditworthy countries

73. This modelling approach combines credit ratings, credit
watches, credit outlooks in a weighted scoring system which is
then combined with an overlay of CDS (Credit Default Swap)
spreads for which the end product is a series of colour code
bands, which indicate the relative creditworthiness of
counterparties. These colour codes are also used by the
Council to determine the duration for investments. The Council
will therefore use counterparties within the following durational
bands:

Yellow 5 years*
Purple 2 years
Blue 1 year (only applies to nationalised or semi

nationalised UK Banks)
Orange 1 year
Red 6 months
Green 3 months
No colour not to be used
*This category is for AAA rated Government debt or its equivalent;




Page 68

74.The Sector creditworthiness service uses a wider array of
information than just primary ratings and by using a risk
weighted scoring system, does not give undue preponderance
to just one agency’s ratings.

75. Typically the minimum credit ratings criteria the Council use will
be a short term rating (Fitch or equivalents) of Short Term
rating F1, Long Term rating A-, Viability ratings of A-, and a
Support rating of 1. There may be occasions when the
counterparty ratings from one rating agency are marginally
lower than these ratings but may still be used. In these
instances consideration will be given to the whole range of
ratings available, or other topical market information, to support
their use.

76. All credit ratings will be monitored on an ongoing basis as
information is provided weekly basis and also adhoc. The
Council is alerted to changes to ratings of all three agencies
through its use of the Sector creditworthiness service:

¢ If a downgrade results in the counterparty/investment
scheme no longer meeting the Council’'s minimum criteria,
its further use as a new investment will be withdrawn
immediately.

¢ In addition to the use of Credit Ratings the Council will be
advised of information in movements in Credit Default Swap
against the iTraxx benchmark and other market data on a
weekly basis. Extreme market movements may result in
downgrade of an institution or removal from the Councils
lending list.

77.Sole reliance will not be placed on the use of this external
service. In addition this Council will also use market data and
market information, information on government support for
banks and the credit ratings of that supporting government.

78. The Council has determined that it will only use approved
counterparties from countries with a minimum sovereign credit
rating of AA- from Fitch Ratings (or equivalent from other
agencies if Fitch does not provide). The list of countries that
qualify using this credit criteria as at the date of this report are
shown in Annex C. This list will be added to or deducted from
by officers should ratings change in accordance with this policy.

Investment Strategy




Page 69

79. Investments will be made with reference to the core balance
and cash flow requirements and the outlook for short-term
interest rates (i.e. rates for investments up to 12 months). The
Council uses matrices that stipulate both time and financial
limits in order to spread counterparty (credit) risk when
investing money with approved counterparties. The matrices
are based on the projected average balance for the year.
Therefore for 2012/13 with the average balance forecast to be
between £20m and £60m, the matrix stipulates a limit for £8m
for counterparties with a durational band of 3 months and £15m
longer than 3 months.

80.Bank Rate is forecast to remain unchanged at 0.5% before
starting to rise from Qtr 4 of 2014. Bank rate forecasts for
financial year ends (March) are:

2012/13 0.50%
2013/14 0.50%
2014/15 0.750%
2015/16 1.75%

81. There are downside risks to these forecasts (i.e. start of
increases in Bank Rate is delayed even further) if economic
growth remains weaker for longer than expected. However,
should the pace of growth pick up more sharply than expected
there could be upside risk, particularly if Bank of England
inflation forecasts for two years ahead exceed the Bank of
England’s 2% target rate.

82.For its cash flow generated balances, the Council will seek to
utilise, business reserve accounts (call accounts), 15 to 30 day
notice accounts, short dated fixed term deposits and money
market funds. The Council will avoid locking into longer term
deals while investment rates are down at historically low levels
unless attractive rates are available with counterparties of
particularly high creditworthiness, which make longer-term
deals worthwhile, and within the risk parameters set by this
council.

83. The suggested budgeted investment earnings rates for returns
on investments placed for periods up to three months during
each financial year for the next four years are as follows:

2012/13 0.50%
2013/14 0.50%
2014/15 0.60%

2015/16 1.50%




Page 70

84. Therefore for 2013/14, the Council has budgeted for an
investment return target of 0.05% on investments placed during
the financial year and uses the 7 day LIBID rate as a
benchmark for the rate of return on investment.

85. Prudential Indicator 9 - total principal investment funds
invested for greater than 364 days. This limits is set with
regards to the Council’s liquidity requirements and are based
on the availability of funds after each year-end. A maximum
principal sum to be invested for greater than 364 days is £10m

86. At the end of the financial year, the Council will report on its
investment activity as part of its Annual Treasury Report. It
should be noted that the Investment policy, creditworthiness
policy and investment startegy are applicable to the Council’s
overall surplus funds and are also pertinent to the HRA.

Policy on the use of external service providers

87.The Council uses Sector as its external treasury management
advisors.

88. The Council recognises that responsibility for treasury
management decisions remains with the organisation at all
times and will ensure that undue reliance is not placed upon
our external service providers.

89. It also recognises that there is value in employing external
providers of treasury management services in order to acquire
access to specialist skills and resources. The Council will
ensure that the terms of their appointment and the methods by
which their value will be assessed are properly agreed and
documented, and subjected to regular review.

Scheme of Delegation and the Role of the Section 151 Officer

90. Those charged with governance are responsible for the
treasury management activities and are clearly defined within
the organisation. Attached at Annex D are the Treasury
Management Scheme of Delegation and also the Treasury
Management role of the section 151 officer (Director of
Customer & Business Support Services).

Consultation and Options

91. The treasury management function of any business is a highly
technical area, where decisions are often taken at very short
notice in reaction to the financial markets. Therefore, to enable
effective treasury management, all operational decisions are




Page 71

delegated by the Council to the Director of Customer &
Business Support Services, who operates within the framework
set out in this strategy and through the Treasury Management
Policies and Practices. In order to inform sound treasury
management operations the Council works with its Treasury
Management advisers, Sector. Sector offers the Council a
comprehensive information and advisory service to enable the
Council to maximise its investment returns and minimise the
costs of its debts.

92. Treasury Management strategy and activity is influenced by the
capital investment and revenue spending decisions made by
the Council. Both the revenue and capital budgets have been
through a corporate process of consultation and consideration
by the elected politicians. The revenue budget and capital
budget proposals are included within this agenda.

93. At a strategic level, there are a number of treasury
management options available which depend on the Council’s
stance on interest rate movements. The report sets out the
Council’s stance and recommends the setting of key trigger
points for borrowing and investing over the forthcoming
financial year.

Council Plan

94. The Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Prudential
Indicators are aimed at ensuring the Council maximises its
return on investments and minimises the cost of its debts. This
will allow more resources to be freed up to invest in the
Council’s priorities, values and imperatives, as set out in the
Council’s Plan.

Implications
95. Implications of the report are as follows:

e Financial — The revenue implications of the treasury strategy
are set out in the Revenue Budget report also on this
agenda.

o Human Resources (HR) — None

o Equalities — None

e Legal — Treasury Management activities have to conform to the

Local Government Act 2003, the Local Authorities (Capital;
Finance and Accounting) (England) Regulations 2003 (Sl
2003/3146), which specifies that the Council is required to have
regard to the CIPFA Prudential Code and the CIPFA Treasury




Page 72

Management Code of Practice and also the Local Authorities
(Capital Finance and Accounting) (England) (Amendment)
Regulations 2008 (SI 2008/414), which clarifies the
requirements of the Minimum Revenue Provision guidance.
Crime and Disorder — None

Information Technology (IT) — None

Property — None

Risk Management

96.

The treasury management function is a high-risk area
because of the volume and level of large money
transactions. As a result of this the Local Government Act
2003 (as amended), supporting regulations, the CIPFA
Prudential Code and the CIPFA Treasury Management in the
Public Services Code of Practice (the code) are all adhered
to as required.

Recommendations

97.

a.

The Cabinet are asked to recommend that Council approve:

The proposed Treasury Management Strategy for 2013/14
including the annual investment strategy and the minimum
revenue provision policy statement;

The Prudential Indicators for 2013/14 to 2017/18 in the main
body of the report;

The Specified and Non-Specified Investments schedule
(Annex B)

The Scheme of Delegation and the Role of the Section 151
Officer (Annex D)

Reason: To enable the continued effective operation of the
Treasury Management function and ensure that all Council
borrowing is prudent, affordable and sustainable.

Contact Details

Author:

Louise Branford-White Chief Officer Responsible for the
Technical Finance Manager report:

Corporate Finance lan Floyd - Director of Customer and
Tel No. 551187 Business Support Services

Ross Brown




Page 73

Report Y | Date 12/02/13
Approved

Specialist Implications Officer(s)

Implication ie Financial Implication ie Legal

Name: lan Floyd Name: Andrew Docherty

Title: Director of CBSS Title: Assistant Director -

Governance & ICT
Tel No.: 01904 551100 Tel No.: 01904 551004

Wards Affected: All Y

For further information please contact the author of the report

Background Papers

Prudential indicator workings 2012/13 to 17/18
Treasury management budget 2013/14

Capital programme 2012/13 to 2017/18 report
Capital budget control 2012/13 to 2017/18.

Sector -treasury management advisers commentary.

Annexes
Annex A — Interest Rate Forecast
Annex B — Specified and Non-Specified Investments categories
Schedule
Annex C — Approved countries for investments
Annex D — Scheme of Delegation and the Role of the Section 151
Officer




ANNEXA - Interest Rate Forecast 2013/2016

Sector'sBank Rate View 050% 050% 0 50% 0 50% 050% 050% 050% 050% 050% 0.75% 100% 125% 150% 1.75%
3Month LBD 039% 0 50% 0 50% 0 50% 0 50% 0 50% 0 50% 0.60% 060% 0.70% 0 80% 110% 140% 170%
6 M onth LBD 0 54% 0.70% 0.70% 0.70% 0.70% 0.70% 0.70% 080% 090% 100% 110% 130% 160% 190%
12 M onth LIBD 0 88% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 110% 110% 120% 130% 130% 150% 180% 2 10%
S5yrPW IB Rate 185% 150% 150% 160% 160% 170% 170% 180% 200% 220% 2 30% 2 50% 2.70% 290%
10yrPW IB Rate 2 87% 2 50% 2 50% 2 60% 2 60% 270% 270% 2 80% 300% 320% 330% 350% 370% 390%
25yrPW IB Rate 4 02% 380% 380% 380% 380% 390% 390% 4 00% 4 10% 4 30% 440% 4 60% 480% 500%
50yrPW IB Rate 4 15% 4 00% 4 00% 4 00% 4 00% 4 10% 4 10% 420% 4 30% 4 50% 4 60% 4 80% 500% 520%
Sector'sView 050% 0 50% 0 50% 0 50% 050% 050% 050% 050% 050% 0.75% 100% 125% 150% 1.75%
UBS 0 50% 0 50% 0 50% 0 50% 0 50% 0 50% 0 50% 0 50% 0 50% - - - - -
CapialEconom ics 050% 050% 0 50% 050% 050% 050% 050% 0 50% 050% - - - - -
SectorsView 185% 150% 150% 160% 160% 170% 170% 180% 200% 220% 2 30% 2 50% 2.70% 290%
UBS 185% = = = = - = = = = - = = =
Cap:ilalEooncm Is 185% 155% 130% 130% 130% 130% 130% 150% 160% - - - - -
SectorsView 287% 2 50% 2 50% 2 60% 260% 2.70% 2.70% 2 80% 300% 320% 330% 350% 3.70% 390%
UBS 287% 3.00% 310% 320% 340% 350% 360% 370% 380% - - - - -
CapialEconom ics 287% 2 55% 2 30% 2 30% 2 30% 2 30% 2 30% 2 30% 2 30% - - - - -
Sector'sView 4 02% 380% 380% 380% 380% 390% 390% 4 00% 4 10% 4 30% 440% 4 60% 480% 500%
UBS 4 02% 420% 4 30% 440% 4 50% 4 50% 4 50% 4 50% 4 50% = = = = =
CapjlalEooncm:'!S 4 02% 3.70% 350% 350% 350% 350% 350% 350% 350% - - - - -
SectorsView 4 15% 4 00% 4 00% 4 00% 4 00% 410% 4 10% 420% 4 30% 4 50% 4 60% 4 80% 500% 520%
UBS 4 15% 4 30% 440% 4 50% 4 60% 4 60% 4 60% 4 60% 4 60% - = = = =

CapitalEconom ios 4 15% 400% 380% 380% 380% 380% 380% 380% 380% - - - - -

v/ ebed



Page 75

Annex B
Specified and Non-Specified Investments Categories

A variety of specified and non-specified investment instruments will
be used to place the Council’s surplus funds. These investment
instruments are, subject to the credit quality of the institution. The
criteria, time limits and monetary limits applying to institutions or
investment vehicles are list in the tables below.

Accounting treatment of investments. The accounting treatment
may differ from the underlying cash transactions arising from
investment decisions made by this Council. To ensure that the
Council is protected from any adverse revenue impact, which may
arise from these differences, we will review the accounting
implications of new transactions before they are undertaken.

SPECIFIED INVESTMENTS:

All such investments will be sterling denominated, with maturities
up to maximum of 1 year, meeting the minimum ‘high’ rating
criteria where applicable

Minimum ‘High’ Credit

Criteria Use

Institution / Counterparty

Debt Management Agency Deposit
Facility

Term deposits — local authorities UK Sovereign rating In-house
Coded: Orange on

Sectors Matrix.

Fitch’s rating:

Short-term F1+, Long-

term AA-, Individual B, In-house
Support 2

Or equivalent rating from
Standard & Poors and
Moody’s

Coded: Blue on Sectors
Matrix.

Fitch’s rating:

Short-term F1+, Long-
UK Part nationalised banks term AA-, Individual B,
Support 2

Or equivalent rating from
Standard & Poors and
Moody’s

Coded: Blue on Sectors
Matrix.

Fitch’s rating: In-house and Fund
Short-term F1+, Long- Mangers

term AA-, Individual B,

Support 2

UK Sovereign rating In-house

Term deposits — banks and building
societies

In-house and Fund
Mangers

Banks part nationalised by high
credit rated (sovereign rating)
countries — non UK




Collateralised deposit

Certificates of deposits issued by
banks and building societies
covered by UK Government
guarantee

Certificates of deposits issued by
banks and building societies

UK Government Gilts

Bonds issued by multilateral
development banks

Bonds issued by a financial
institution which is guaranteed by
the UK government

Sovereign bond issues (other than
the UK gowt)

Treasury Bills

Page 76

Or equivalent rating from
Standard & Poors and
Moody’s

Coded: Orange on
Sectors Matrix /

UK Sovereign rating

Coded: Orange on
Sectors Matrix /
UK Sovereign rating

F Coded: Orange on
Sectors Matrix /

Fitch’s rating: UK
sovereign rating or Short-
term F1+, Long-term AA-
, Individual B,

Support 2 or equivalent
rating from Standard&
Poors and Moodys
Coded: Orange on
Sectors Matrix /

UK Sovereign rating
Coded: Orange on
Sectors Matrix /

Long term AAA

Coded: Orange on
Sectors Matrix /
UK Sovereign rating

Coded: Orange on
Sectors Matrix /
Sovereign rating
Coded: Orange on
Sectors Matrix /
UK Sovereign rating

In-house and Fund
Mangers

In-house and Fund
Mangers

In-house and Fund
Mangers

In-house buy and
hold and Fund
Managers
In-house buy and
hold and Fund
Managers

In-house buy and
hold and Fund
Managers

In-house buy and
hold and Fund
Managers

Fund Managers

Collective Investment Schemes structured as Open Ended Investment Companies

(OEICs): -
1. Government Liquidity Funds

2. Money Market Funds
.3. Enhanced cash funds
4. Bond Funds
5. Gilt Funds
6. Property Funds

UK Nationalised Banks

UK Part nationalised Banks

Short-term F1,
Long-term AAA
Short-term F1,
Long-term AAA
Short-term F1,
Long-term AAA
Long-term AAA

Long-term AAA

Long-term AAA

UK sovereign rating

UK sovereign rating

In-house and Fund
Managers
In-house and Fund
Managers
In-house and Fund
Managers
In-house and Fund
Managers
In-house and Fund
Managers
In-house and Fund
Managers
In-house and Fund
Managers
In-house and Fund
Managers




Page 77

NON-SPECIFIED INVESTMENTS:
A maximum of 100% can be held in aggregate in non-specified
investment

1. Maturities of ANY period

1)
o Minimum Credit Max % of Max. .
Institution / Counterparty Use total maturity

Criteria . .
investments | period
Coded: red (6mths)
and green (3mths)
on Sectors Matrix.
Fitch’s rating:

'tla'e_r m depos_lts_— banks and Short-term F1, Long- In-house 100% 36
uilding societies t Months
erm A-,
Or equivalent rating
from Standard &
Poors and Moody’s
Coded: orange (1yr)
red (6mths) and
green (3mths) on
Fixed term deposits with Sectors Matrix.
variable rate and variable Fitch’s rating: o
maturities: -Structured Short-term F1, Long- In-house 40% 1 Year
deposits term A-,
Or equivalent rating
from Standard &
Poors and Moody’s
Coded: orange (1yr)
red (6mths) and
green (3mths) on In-house
Certificates of deposits issued = Sectors Matrix. buy and
by banks and building Fitch’s rating: o
societies NOT covered by UK = Short-term F1, Long- Eﬁlr? dand 30% 1Year
Government guarantee term A-, Managers
Or equivalent rating 9
from Standard &
Poors and Moody’s
Commercial paper issuance
covered by a specific UK In-house
Government guarantee and UK Sovereignrating = and Fund  30% 1 Year
issued by banks covered by Managers
the UK bank support package
Coded: orange (1yr)
red (6mths) and
green (3mths) on
Sectors Matrix.
Commercial paper other gt}%r;fté?;;n% Long- In-house 30% 1 Year
term A-,
Or equivalent rating
from Standard &

Poors and Moody’s




Page 78

Coded: orange (1yr)
red (6mths) and
green (3mths) on
Sectors Matrix.

o o In-house o
Corporate Bonds g'rt]Ch s rating: and Fund 30% 1 Year
ort-term F1, Long- Managers
term A-,
Or equivalent rating
from Standard &
Poors and Moody’s
Other debt issuance by UK UK Government In-house
banks covered by UK . and Fund  30%
Government guarantee explicit guarantee Managers
Floating Rate Notes: the use N/A —
of these investments would Fund N/A — Capital ~ Capital
constitute capital expenditure Long-term AAA Managers  Expenditure Expenditu
unless they are issued by a re
multi lateral development bank
N/A -
Froperty fund: fhe use of B Fund N/A— Capital ~ Capital
. . . Managers  Expenditure Expenditu
constitute capital expenditure re
Coded: orange (1yr)
red (6mths) and
green (3mths) on
Sectors Matrix.
Local Authority mortgage Fitch’s rating: In-house
guarantee scheme Short-term F1, Long-
term A-,
Or equivalent rating
from Standard &
Poors and Moody’s
2. Maturities in excess of 1 year
Term deposits — local _ In-house 10% > 1 year
authorities
Coded: Purple(2yrs)
or Yellow (5yrs) on
Sectors Matrix.
Fitch’s rating:
Term deposits — banks and = Short-term F1+, o
building societies Long-term AA-, In-house 10% > 1year
Support 2
Or equivalent rating
from Standard &
Poors and Moody’s
Certificates of deposits In house
|ss.ue'd by bgnlfs and UK Sovereign and Fund 10% > 1 year
building societies covered by Managers
UK Government guarantee
Certificates of deposits In house
Es_ue_d by bgnlfs and UK Sovereign and Fund 10% > 1 year
uilding societies covered by Managers

the UK government banking




Page 79

support package
Certificates of deposits Coded: Purple(2yrs)
issued by banks and or Yellow (5yrs) on In house
building societies NOT Sectors Matrix / and Fund 10% > 1 vear
covered by the UK Short-term F1+, Managers ° y
government banking support | Long-term AA-, 9
package Support 2
In-house
UK Government Gilts UK Sovereign rating = and Fund 10% > 1 year
Managers
. . In-house
Bonds issued by multilateral Long term AAA and Fund 10% > 1 year
development banks M
anagers
Sovereign bond issues (i.e. Long term AAZ L\nr;goFuusrs d 10% > 1 vear
other than the UK govt) 9 M ? y
anagers
Collective Investment Schemes structure as open Ended Investment Companies (OEICs)
A AL In-house
1. Bond Funds Long-term and Fund
Managers
In-house
2. Gilt Funds Long-term AAA and Fund

Managers




Page 80

Approved countries for investments

AAA

AA+

Australia
Canada
Denmark
Finland
Germany
Luxembourg
Netherlands
Norway
Singapore
Sweden
Switzerland
U.K.

France
Hong Kong
U.S.A.

Abu Dhabi
Qatar
UAE

Belgium
Japan
Saudi Arabia

Annex C




Page 81

Annex D
Treasury Management Scheme of Delegation

(i) Cabinet / Full Council

. receiving and reviewing reports on treasury management
policies, practices and activities

. approval of annual strategy and annual outturn
(ii) Cabinet
. approval offamendments to the organisation’s adopted clauses,

treasury management policy statement and treasury
management practices

. budget consideration and approval
. approval of the division of responsibilities

« receiving and reviewing regular monitoring reports and acting
on recommendations

(iii) Audit & Governance Committee

« receiving and scrutinising reports on treasury management
policies, practices and activities

« scrutinising the annual strategy, annual outturn and quarterly
updates.

(iv) Director of resources (Section 151 Officer)

. reviewing the treasury management policy and procedures and
making recommendations to the responsible body.

. all operational decisions are delegated by the Council to the
Director of Customer & Business Support Services, who
operates within the framework set out in this strategy and
through the Treasury Management Policies and Practices

. Approving the selection of external service providers and
agreeing terms of contract in accordance with the delegations
in financial regulations.

The Treasury Management Role of the Section 151 Officer

. recommending clauses, treasury management policy/practices
for approval, reviewing the same regularly, and monitoring
compliance

. all operational decisions delegated by the Council to the
Director of Customer & Business Support Services (S151
Officer), who operates within the framework set out in this




Page 82

strategy and through the treasury management policies and
practices

submitting regular treasury management policy reports
submitting budgets and budget variations
receiving and reviewing management information reports

reviewing the performance of the treasury management
function

ensuring the adequacy of treasury management resources and
skills, and the effective division of responsibilities within the
treasury management function

ensuring the adequacy of internal audit, and liaising with
external audit

recommending the appointment of external service providers.




Page 83 Agenda ltem 9

COUNCIL

Audit and Governance Committee 13 February 2013

Report of the Director of Customer & Business Support Services

CYC Audit Progress Report 2012/13- Mazar’s External Auditors
Summary

1. The paper attached at Annex A from Mazar’s — the Council’s
external auditors - reports on progress in delivering their
responsibilities as auditors.

Background

2. The report covers:
(a) Transitional arrangements from the Audit Commission
(b) Progress on the Audit for 2012/13
(c) Forthcoming Events to assist delivery of the final accounts
process
(d) Audit Commission publications

Consultation

3. Not relevant for the purpose of the report.

Options
4. Not relevant for the purpose of the report.

Analysis
5. Not relevant for the purpose of the report.
Council Plan

6. This report contributes to the overall effectiveness of the council’s
governance and assurance arrangements.



Page 84

Implications

7. There are no financial, HR, equalities, legal, crime and disorder, IT
or property implications arising from this report.

Risk Management

8. By not responding effectively to the matters contained in this report,
the council will fail to properly comply with legislative and best
practice requirements.

Recommendations

9. Members are asked to note Mazar’s, the Council’s external
auditors, Audit progress Report — January 2013

Reason

To make members aware of Mazar’s progress in delivering their
responsibilities as external auditors.

Contact Details

Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the
report:
Louise Branford-White lan Floyd

Technical Finance Manager Director of Resources

Corporate Finance

Telephone: 01904 551187 Telephone: 01904 55110
Report J Date 13/02/13
Approved

Specialist Implications Officers

Not applicable

Wards Affected: All |V

For further information please contact the author of the report
Background Papers:
None

Annex
External Audit Fee Planning Letter 2012/13



Strictly private & confidential N M AZARS

City of York Council

January 2013



City of York Council
Audit progress report — January 2013

Contents

1. Introduction 2
2. Transition from the Audit Commission 2
3. Progress on the audit 2
4, Forthcoming Events 3
5. Audit Commission publications 3

This document is to be regarded as confidential to City of York Council. It has been prepared for the sole use of the Audit and Governance

Committee. No responsibility is accepted to any other person in respect of the whole or part of its contents. Before this document, or any part of it, is
disclosed to a third party, our written consent must first be obtained.

i

NEE MAZARS

9g abed



City of York Council
Audit progress report — January 2013

1.  Introduction

The purpose of this paper is to provide the Audit and Governance
Committee with a report on progress in delivering our responsibilities
as your external auditors.

This paper also seeks to highlight recent Audit Commission reports
and other publications which may be of interest to Committee
members.

If you require any additional information, please contact your

Engagement Lead or Senior Manager using the contact details below:

Engagement Steve Nicklin (Director) Steve.Nicklin@mazars.co.uk

Lead 0191 383 7300

Senior Manager | Lynn Worth Lynn.Worth@mazars.co.uk

07816 310322

Finally, please note our website address (www.mazars.co.uk) which
sets out the range of work Mazars carries out, both within the UK and
abroad. It also details the existing work Mazars does in the public
sector — including Academies, Universities, Sixth Form Colleges and
Housing Associations (both Internal and External Audit).

2. Transition from the Audit Commission

As from 1% November 2012, former Audit Commission staff transferred
to Mazars. Your audit Engagement Lead remains unchanged and we
are committed to continuing to provide a high quality audit.

3. Progress on the audit

We are making good progress with our audit planning and risk
assessment process, having recently met with the Council’s central
finance team, Internal Audit and senior officers. We have issued our
2012/13 fee planning letter, confirming that at this stage we consider
the Audit Commission’s published scale fee to be appropriate.

We will bring our Audit Strategy Memorandum to the next Audit and
Governance Committee. This is a comprehensive report, required by
auditing standards. It sets out our overall audit approach as well as any
key risks we have identified for the audit and covers both the opinion
on the financial statements and the Value for Money conclusion.

Work is currently under way to document and test the Council’s key
financial systems, and to update our Value for Money and IT risk
assessments.

M MAZARS

/g obed



City of York Council
Audit progress report — January 2013

4. Forthcoming events

Mazars is hosting Chief Accountants’ workshops for public sector
clients on 25 and 27 February 2013 in Durham and York, as part of its
commitment to ensuring smooth and successful audit delivery in this
important first year.

We have also held early discussions with the Council's chief
accountant to confirm, at a local level:

¢ Closedown arrangements
e Action taken in response to issues raised in 2011/12

e New Code requirements.

5. Audit Commission publications

Reducing the cost of assessments and reviews

This is the third in a series of briefings looking at how councils and
their partners can achieve better value for money in adult social care. It
focuses on the assessment and review process and examines how
some councils’ have managed to keep their costs low whilst continuing
to meet vulnerable people's needs.

A benchmarking tool and methodology are available on the
Commission’s website to help councils compare their costs, staffing
and activity levels against other similar authorities. Where costs are
high, councils should investigate the reasons, assess how local
circumstances affect their costs, and identify the scope for making
savings. But all councils, including those with relatively low costs, can
use this tool to identify the scope for further savings.

Protecting the public purse

This report finds that councils are targeting their investigative
resources more efficiently and effectively, detecting more than 124,000
cases of fraud in 2011/12 totalling £179 million. But it urges them not to
drop their guard, as new frauds are emerging in areas such as
business rates, Right to Buy housing discounts and schools. An
updated checklist also gives organisations an opportunity to consider
how effective they are at responding to the risk of fraud

i

N M AZARS

1

g8 abed



City of York Council
Audit progress report — January 2013

Striking a Balance

Reserves are an essential part of good financial management. They
help councils cope with unpredictable financial pressures and plan for
future spending commitments. The level, purpose and planned use of
reserves are important factors for elected members and council
officers to consider in developing medium-term financial plans and
setting annual budgets.

The report encourages English councils to focus more attention on the
2.9 billion set aside in their reserves, and calls for greater clarity from
councils about the reasons for holding reserves.

Tough times

The report finds that in 2011/12, councils largely delivered their
planned savings and in many cases added to reserves. However,
auditors reported that signs of financial stress were visible. A sizeable
minority of councils had to make additional in-year cuts, seek
additional funding, or restructure efficiency programmes in order to
deliver their budgets. The report says that auditors are concerned that
12 per cent of councils are not well-placed to deliver their 2012/13
budgets. They feel that a further 25 per cent will cope in 2012/13, but
may struggle in the remaining years of the Spending Review period.

Auditing the Accounts 2011/12

This report summarises the results of auditors' work for 2011/12 at
councils, fire and rescue authorities, police bodies, other local
government bodies, parish councils and internal drainage boards.

The Commission reports that auditors were able to issue the audit
opinion by 30 September 2012 at 98 per cent of councils, all fire and
rescue authorities, 97 per cent of police bodies, all other local
government bodies, 97 per cent of parish councils and 97 per cent of
internal drainage boards. This is an improvement for all types of body
compared with 2010/11.

68 abed

1}

N M AZARS

1




Page 90



Page 91 Agenda ltem 10

Audit and Governance Committee 13 February 2013

Report of the Head of Internal Audit

Fraud Risk Assessment

Summary

1 The purpose of this report is to inform Members about
potential fraud risks that the council is exposed to, and
proposed counter fraud activity to address those risks.

Background

2 Fraud is a significant issue for all public sector organisations.
Current estimates suggest fraud costs the public purse in
excess of £20bn per year. To help direct counter fraud
resources to the areas most needed, it is essential that the
council considers the range of fraud risks it faces.

Risk Assessment

3 An assessment of fraud risks faced by the council is included
at exempt annex 1. This builds on assessments completed
over the last two years and gives an indication of the
susceptibility of each area to fraud along with planned action
by the internal audit and counter fraud teams. This model will
continue to be developed in future years as more information
becomes available and new techniques are developed.

Review Against Good Practice

4 In addition to the risk assessment, a review against current
good practice for counter fraud arrangements has been
undertaken. This includes information taken from:

¢Cipfa Red Book 2 — Managing the Risk of Fraud

e The Audit Commission’s Protecting the Public Purse, 2012



Page 92

eThe National Fraud Authority (NFA) — Fighting Fraud
Together, 2012

While overall counter fraud arrangements are good, the
review has identified a number of areas for further
development in 2013/14, as set out below:

eUndertake a further review of the overall counter fraud
strategy, in order to develop clear goals and actions, better
quantification of the outcomes of counter fraud work, and
ensure fraud response arrangements are up to date.

eContinue to undertake fraud awareness training in key
service areas, and roll out general fraud awareness training
through the introduction of the NFA'’s e-learning tool.

ePromote further  development of  whistleblowing
arrangements, to ensure that channels for reporting fraud
are clear and well publicised.

eReview agreements in place between the counter fraud
team, external partners, and internal departments to ensure
they support joint working.

eUndertake a further review of counter fraud arrangements in
relation to specific service areas including recruitment,
procurement, and housing fraud (in particular developing
relationships with other social housing providers).

Consultation

This report is part of the ongoing consultation with
stakeholders on priorities for internal audit and counter fraud
work.

Options

Not relevant for the purpose of the report.
Analysis

Not relevant for the purpose of the report.
Council Plan

The work of internal audit and counter fraud supports overall
aims and priorities by promoting probity, integrity and honesty



Page 93

and by helping to make the council a more effective
organisation.

Implications

10 There are no implications to this report in relation to:

Finance

Human Resources (HR)
Equalities

Legal

Crime and Disorder
Information Technology (IT)

Property

Risk Management Assessment

11  The council will fail to comply with proper practice if counter
fraud arrangements are not based on an appropriate
assessment of risk.

Recommendations

12 Members are asked to;

comment on the fraud risk assessment set out in Annex
1, and proposed priorities for counter fraud work set out
in the Annex and at paragraph 5.

Reason

To ensure that scarce audit and counter fraud resources
are used effectively.



Page 94

Contact Details

Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the
report:

Max Thomas lan Floyd

Head of Internal Audit Director of Customer & Business

Veritau Limited Support Services

Telephone: 01904 Telephone: 01904 551100

552940
Report v Date 31 January
Approved 2013

Specialist Implications Officers

Not applicable

Wards Affected: Not applicable All v

For further information please contact the author of the report

Background Papers

e The Audit Commission — Protecting The Public Purse 2012
e The National Fraud Authority — Fighting Fraud Together
e Cipfa — Red Book 2 — Managing The Risk of Fraud

Annexes

Exempt Annex 1 - Counter Fraud Risk Assessment



Page 95

By virtue of paragraph(s) 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 106

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 107 Agenda ltem 11

Audit and Governance Committee 13 February 2013

Report of the Head of Internal Audit

Internal Audit Plan Consultation

Summary

1 The purpose of the report is to seek Members’ views on the
priorities for internal audit for 2013/14, to inform the
preparation of the annual audit plan.

Background

2 In accordance with proper practice’, internal audit plans are
prepared on the basis of a risk assessment. This is designed
to ensure that limited audit resources are prioritised towards
those systems and areas which are considered to be the most
risky and/or which contribute the most to the achievement of
the council’s corporate priorities and objectives. Consultation
with members and with senior council officers is an essential
part of the risk assessment process, to ensure that their views
on the risks facing the organisation are taken into account.

2013/14 Audit Plan

3 ltis intended to follow the same approach used in the last two
years in setting the 2013/14 audit plan. Audits will include a
mix of areas that have historically been a high risk (for
example in areas such as the main financial systems where
the volume and value of transactions processed are so
significant that regular audit is essential) and other reviews
targeted towards areas of increased risk due to change.
Where changes are occurring, the audits may include (a)
direct support to the change process itself, (b) reviews of the

! Proper practice is currently set out in the CIPFA Code of Practice for Internal Audit in Local
Government in the UK. From April 2013 this will be replaced by the Public Sector Internal
Audit Standards and specific guidance on these standards for local government, to be issued
by CIPFA. The requirement for engagement with senior managers and members in the audit
planning process will remain the same.



Page 108

project management arrangements, or (c) consideration of
the impact of those changes on the control environment for
example where the reduction in resources may result in fewer
controls. Figure 1 below sets out the areas which are felt to be
a priority for internal audit for 2013/14.

Members views are sought about whether:

a) the proposed approach to determining priorities for the
2013/14 audit plan, set out above, is reasonable

b) there are areas in addition to those listed in figure 1 which
should be considered as a priority for review.

Figure 1 — Priorities for Audit 2013/14

Area

Possible Scope of Work

Impact of
Office Moves

business continuity, staff travel, central
document management (for example scanning
and storage), home working (health and safety
and IT implications)

Adult Social
Care

direct payments

Major Projects

community stadium, libraries social enterprise

establishments

Human apprentices, sickness/absence management

Resources

Information information security checks (to include West

Security Offices and Hazel Court)

CANS policies and procedures in place for
undertaking private works, charging policies,
and the management of surplus and scrap
materials

Social care establishment audit focussing on security and

cash handling procedures following the
implementation of new procedures during
2012/13

Changes in
Council Tax
and NNDR

rules

localisation of NNDR collection, Leeds City
Region Business Rates Pool, new council tax
support scheme (including crisis loans and
community care grants)




Page 109

Key Corporate
Risks

capital programme, savings (planning,
monitoring and achievement)

Main Financial
Systems

general ledger, creditors, debtors, treasury
management, income & cash handling, payroll

Public Health

planning, commissioning and management of
new public health services

Consultation

This report is part of the ongoing consultation with
stakeholders on priorities for internal audit work.

Options

Not relevant for the purpose of the report.

Analysis

Not relevant for the purpose of the report.

Council Plan

The work of internal audit supports overall aims and priorities
by promoting probity, integrity and honesty and by helping to
make the council a more effective organisation.

Implications

There are no implications to this report in relation to:

Finance

Human Resources (HR)

Equalities

Legal

Crime and Disorder

Information Technology (IT)

Property




Page 110

Risk Management Assessment

10 The council will fail to comply with proper practice if
appropriate officers and members are not consulted on the

content of audit plans.
Recommendations

11 Members are asked to;

- Comment on the proposed approach to internal audit
planning for 2013/14 and identify any specific areas
which should be considered a priority for audit

Reason

To ensure that scarce audit resources are used

effectively.

Contact Details

Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the
report:

Max Thomas lan Floyd

Head of Internal Audit Director of Customer & Business

Veritau Limited Support Services

Telephone: 01904 Telephone: 01904 551100

552940
Report % Date 31 January
Approved 2013

Specialist Implications Officers

Not applicable

Wards Affected: Not applicable All v

For further information please contact the author of the report

Background Papers
None

Annexes
None



	Agenda
	
	2 Minutes
	5 Audit and Governance Committee Forward Plan to December 2013
	Annex 1

	6 Review of the Effectiveness of Internal Audit
	7 Scrutiny of the Treasury Management Monitor 3 Report 2012/13 and review of Prudential Indicators
	Appendix A
	Annex A

	8 Scrutiny of the Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Prudential Indicators
	Appendix A - report to Cabinet

	9 Progress Report on 2012/13 Audit Report
	Annex - Progress Report

	10 Fraud Risk Assessment
	Annex 1

	11 Internal Audit Plan Consultation

